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Group Structure
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Financial Highlights
A 4

Major Financial Indicators and Ratios

ERMBRHRE &R

For the year ended 31st March
HE=A=1T—HILFE

2023

—— =

P

HK$'000
TET

Operating results

Revenue Uz 410,421 501,269 (18.1)
Gross profit EH 106,083 131,768 (19.5)
Operating profit B T 13,557 30,078 (54.9)
Net profit o] 5,269 21,140 (75.1)

HK cents
74l

Per share data srRER

(Loss)/earnings per share BR(EE), &R 6.6 (103)
Total dividend per share BB 1 -
Net assets per share BREEFE 94.1 (8.3)

HK$'000
FET

FAEEA R

Financial position

Total assets BEBE 320,093 355,925 (10.1)
Net assets BEFE 172,674 188,169 (8.2)
Financial ratio BIIG L =R

Current ratio (Times) MENLL R (%) 1.9 -
Quick ratio (Times) REPLL R (FF) 07 (14.3)
Gross margin (%) FERR(%) 26.3 (1.5)
Net gearing ratio (%) FEEBBILE%) 33 (12.1)

Turnover ratio BEE R

Inventory turnover FEiRE 185 15.1
Debtors turnover e R A E 42 2.4
Creditors turnover e ER R e 36 13.9

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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Financial Highlights
AT T2

For the year ended 31st March &= = A =+—HIEFE

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %)  Revenue by Business Segments (by %)

T I 3 B 2 W o (¥ a4 BLEER ) EEH I W (EE 4 HER)
® Hong Kong &7 45% ® Electronic and Electrical Trading Business ¥ « ERTHEE X 66%
® Asia Pacific (other than Hong Kong) 82 A& (B ERRSN) 20% ® Computer Business & 275 20%
® South Africa FI3F 32% ® Cosmetic and Online Retail Business 1b. & N 48 T & 575 14%
® Europe B 2%
) Others EAthith[@ 1%
Revenue Profit (Loss) Attributable to Shareholders
W £ JB& 3 I A v A (s 48)
HKS$ in million HKS in million
BEBT AEET
900 20
15 122 13.2
10
600

470 5
A3 us 4sp - 5
40
0 —
200 1 | | (0.4)

(5.7)

a0 (77)
0 15
2019 2000 2021 2022 2023 8 2020 2021 2022 073
Shareholders’ Equity Earnings (Loss) per Share — Basic
i S HE 2 TR EMOEE) — F AR
HKS in million HK cents
AEET 11|
160 8
137 . 6.1 o
124 25 123 5
120 106 4
3
2
8 : _
a 1 | | 02)
2
40 2 (2.86)
4 (3.84)
5 ‘
6
0 7
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CEOQO’s Statement
A7 B R AR R

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 31st March 2023 (the “Year Under Review"), the
Group recorded a turnover of around HK$410 million, representing a decrease
of about 18.2% from approximately HK$501 million recorded in the last year.
Gross profit decreased by about 19.7% from approximately HK$132 million
last year to around HK$106 million for the Year Under Review, while the gross
profit margin decreased by about 1.5% from 26.3% to 25.9%. The Group
recorded an operating profit of approximately HK$13.6 million (31st March
2022: approximately HK$30 million). The loss attributable to shareholders
was approximately HK$0.4 million (31st March 2022: profit of approximately
HK$13.2 million). This represented loss per share of around HK$0.002 (earning
per share of around HK$0.066 as at 31st March 2022). The Board has resolved
that subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, a final dividend of HK$0.5 cent per ordinary
share shall be declared for the Year Under Review, a total of HK$1 million to
the shareholders whose names appeared on the register of members of the
Company on 18th August 2023. The final dividend, if approved, is expected to
be paid on 29th August 2023.

s

HE_ZT_=F=A=+—HLEHERF
E(IEBEFE]) AEBZEEXBNA
ME—FT&88rL BEFENRETS B8
ETLH S EEELLE - THA182% : EFMH
FFEYH— BT _aEEIT TEL197%
ZOEFEH—EBZNBEB T HLFE
LB - EFEYE26.3% NPEE25.9% ¢+ NEKA
B15% o AEBLEFNBNAE—TFT =81
EXET(ZE-_—_F=A=+—H0: 78
=FEAERL) BRREGEBEBEOANTE
BL(ZEZZF=ZA=+—H &ML
—FT=B=Z+&7%n)  HERSREBED
0028 L(R=F=-_=_F=RA=+—H: &
MEFIZ0066ETL) - EEGZ A - FBRE
RARREEREBFT KRG EHEER - A
E_Z_=FN\A+N\BRINNREARRKZR
Z 2 BREREIREETERAR S SR LR
RROSEN - AH—EEBT - RERE—K
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CEO’s Statement
A7 B AR

During the Year Under Review, the Group continued to focus on its three core
business operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components,
electrical components and equipment under the brand of MIBICON (1he
“Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which
includes (i) the retail sales of computer products and smartphone accessories
under the brand of |2 VideoCom (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii)
the distribution of computer products and consumer products under the brand
of fi.? (the “Computer Distribution Business”); and (3) the Cosmetic and
Online Retail Business mainly under the brand of W'Shh' and ,;-@W During
the Year Under Review, the Group's turnover derived from the Electronic
and Electrical Trading Business decreased by approximately 24.4% to about
HK$273 million from approximately HK$361 million last year. Turnover from
the Computer Business increased by approximately 2.6% to about HK$80
million from approximately HK$78 million last year. Turnover from the
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business decreased by approximately 9.5% to
about HK$57 million from approximately HK$63 million last year.

NOBEEE AEEBEEIRE=A
BT BD (1) 54 MOBIBON 5 o ks
TN BRAAMEROBER(E
T OBRAHEBEER]  QBRKESR

& B4 (i) A L VideoCom & 5 B2 89 B S 2
SRS FHEUTEER (BT E:
1) R P8 s o EKES R
HEESOHEBLERAOHER])

&m%wmwﬁﬂpﬁixm@mm%
SEGRBLITELE REEFE A
EEKEET TRTHBBERILYE
ENA—ELT-EEBT REEH
SEAT - EBET T B A2%4% B JS
wikgsm sy \ TEBT  BREEH
T NEEBITT LA 426% ¢ (L@ RA
TEERLEERENRATHEEST &
EENAT = EEB T FEA95% o
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CEQO’s Statement
A7 B AR

For the Year Under Review, the Group's total operating expenses decreased
by approximately 6.7% to around HK$98 million (31st March 2022: about
HK$105 million), among which the distribution and selling expenses were
approximately HK$31 million which have decreased by about 11.4% from
HK$35 million recorded last year. During the Year Under Review, the general
and administrative expenses decreased by about 2.9% to around HK$67
million (31st March 2022: about HK$69 million). As at 31st March 2023, the
headcount for the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business decreased from
331 full-time employees last year by approximately 0.3% to 330 full-time
employees for the Year Under Review while the headcount for the Computer
Business remained unchanged from last year with 47 full-time employees
for the Year Under Review and the headcount for Cosmetic and Online Retail
Business decreased from 16 full-time employees last year by approximately
43.8% to nine (9) full-time employees for the Year Under Review. Meanwhile,
finance cost for the Year Under Review increased by about 65.4% to
approximately HK$4.3 million (31st March 2022: approximately HK$2.6
million).

Development Strategy and Outlook

Looking towards the future, the consumer electronics markets will continue to
be impacted by the ongoing Russia-Ukraine War. In addition, the energy crisis
has caused high oil prices, leading to inflation and high interest rates. Coupled
with the decline in demand, this has had a significant impact on the export
trading business. The Group anticipates that the unfavourable situation may
improve by the conclusion of 2023.

In South Africa, the Group is pleased to announce that we have almost
completed our transition to the new headquarters, which is approximately
130,000 square feet. The Group expects that the new headquarters will
promote our corporate image and increase our warehouse space, thereby
significantly improving our operational efficiency. As a result, the Group is
confident that this relocation will contribute to an increase in market share
and bolster the overall profitability.

With regard to the Computer Business segment, the Group foresees a
continued weakness in demand for computer products and mobile accessories.
The Group remains committed to implementing dynamic sales strategies to
counteract different challenges.

REBEFE  AEEKERAIRENA
AFNEEBT  BLL6TIN(ZZE==
=A=+—HR:y—REBERASET)  H
ROEMEEBRYA=T BEB T &
EFHN=ZTHEBB TR H114% - RE
BEE  —BERTHREEBRARDH29%E
AR FrEEET(ZE-_—F=A=+—
H:#HANTALEEABL) ~HEZZT=_=F
=A=t+—Hit ' EF  BERTHEEEK
METHEHREFNNBEZEHBE TR
03%ZECEEFEMIEEBET  MEIESF
EEMEBNEIHETE  NRIZEH
BT @ mMEEFEAREE ESTEELRHN
BTHEMRLEFEI6E2HE TR 4438%
ZENOZREHET - BFEKN - BEFERN
BB AL NNAI65.4% =N H =+EB T (=
E-—F-A=Z=+—HB:H-BATEBE
JT) °

5 P SR S e 2

RERR HBETFHSRBFAZIREH
FNPE BN LEREREEHER L
SIERRMMEEE  BREGYHOES
MERIRER B EITE - SEANAETE
RELE-T-=FFRNESHE -

ERE AEEMASEH - RASEITTHK
BAKBE T ROVFARED - NEEEH
RERARREFEELR - EAREEREL
BEREEZME - Aty - REBEMEELX
WEH A B IE I Th 510 R IR SR B AE & R

alb
BE °©

THERHBME  AEEERTREDR
FREMHERDEHERT - KEBEH
T 4 AR R Tk

BERAISEERAR - T "B=F5%R
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CEO’s Statement
A7 B AR

As for the Cosmetics Business, the Group expects that performance will
continue to grow steadily. The removal of the COVID-19 pandemic containment
measures and travel restrictions by the Hong Kong Government which resulted
in the increased number of tourists from Individual Visit Scheme for the
Mainland is likely to bring a positive effect to the Cosmetics Retail Business.
Meanwhile, the Group is optimistic about the prospect of Online Retail
Business. We will increase the profit margins of our products by investing
additional resources to fortify our procurement capabilities, particularly in
terms of sourcing high-quality Japanese goods.

In conclusion, the Group continues to review the ever-changing global
landscape, seek to a better position and to take advantage when there are
opportunities.

Appreciation

| ' would like to thank our management team and all our staff members for
their effort and significant contribution to the Group during the past year. In
addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our shareholders,
institutional investors, customers, bankers and business partners for their
continuous support and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28th June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B W e o B

Business Review

During the Year Under Review, the Group operated in three core business
operations, namely: (1) the distribution of electronic components, electrical
components and equipment under the brand of MIBIEON (the “Electronic and
Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the
retail sales of computer products and smartphone accessories under the brand
of 1 VideoCom (the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of
computer products and consumer products under the brand of @; and
(3) the Cosmetic Business and Online Retail Business mainly under the brand
of Wishh! ang Q (the "Cosmetic and Online Retail Business”). The
Electronic and Electrical Trading Business, the Computer Business and the
Cosmetic and Online Retail Business accounted for approximately 66% and
20% and 14% of the Group's total turnover respectively for the Year Under
Review.

The gross profit margin of the Electronic and Electrical Trading Business,
the Computer Business and the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business were
approximately 28.0%, 19.3% and 24.8% respectively for the Year Under
Review (31st March 2022: approximately 27.1%, 23.3% and 25.1%).

Electronic and Electrical Trading Business

Hong Kong

Electronic and Electrical Trading Business is the primary contributor to
the Group’s revenue during the Year Under Review and recorded revenue
of approximately HK$273 million as compared with that of approximately
HK$361 million recorded last year, representing a decrease of approximately
24.3%. During the Year Under Review, the trading of electronic components
experienced a decline cycle because of the decreasing demand. The high
inflation has significantly impacted export trading in Hong Kong, resulting in
a slower recovery. Nevertheless, the Group is optimistic about the Electronic
and Electrical Trading Business.

% ol g
REEFE - $E@%«%_K$§/u%ﬁ“
Eﬂ S BA A MOBICON ﬁuuﬁgﬁm %%Eﬁ
RILHEAESEER(E %ﬂmﬁF
,\,\ﬁiﬂj) 2)F “(%ﬁ* *EP@?EU)LX
mVldQOCOm BB EEm RS T HAC
HEEXE((BMTELE R mbggm
AmEMNENER M HBERDHEER X
MMWMMﬂ@@EEKWWWMMﬁ&
iﬁii@i%‘k(f{tﬂﬁuu&iﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁj)
REBEEE - BERTHEEBEXK - &
“%ﬂ‘k&{tﬂﬁuu&ﬁt SE XD b AR E
B 48 UL 25 4966%  20% K2 14% o

REBEFEE &7 ERTLHESEL &
PSEBRbABEB ETEEB 2 ERES
BI# 528.0% ~ 19.3% K 248%( — T - —F =
A=+—H : #927.1% ~ 23.3%525.1%) °

BT~ EROCOHEEH

=
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B W e o B

Overseas

The aggregate turnover of all of the Group’s overseas subsidiaries was
approximately HK$173 million for the Year Under Review, representing
an overall decrease of approximately 1.1% as compared with that of
approximately HK$175 million recorded last year.

The Group's subsidiaries in South Africa recorded turnover of approximately
HK$132 million for the Year Under Review, representing a decrease by
approximately 7.7% from approximately HK$143 million last year. In the
correspondence period, the energy crisis and fluctuation of fuel price had
a negative impact on the economy of South Africa. The local constraint of
electricity supply (Load-shedding) bounded the productivities and operations
of our customers, thereby diminished the demand in electronic components.

In terms of geographical segments, the turnover from Hong Kong, the Asia
Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and other regions
accounted for approximately 45%, 20%, 32%, 2% and 1% respectively of the
Group’s total turnover during the Year Under Review.

Computer Business

For the Year Under Review, the Computer Retail Business recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$16 million (31st March 2022: approximately HK$20
million), representing a decrease of approximately 20%. For the Year Under
Review, the turnover of the Computer Distribution Business recorded an
increase of approximately 10.3% to approximately HK$64 million (31st March
2022: approximately HK$58 million). Despite revenue growth, the gross profit
margin for Computer Business decreased significantly to 19.3% (31st March
2022: 23.3%), this margin decline was mainly due to intensifying competition
in the market.

Cosmetic and Online Retail Business

During the Year Under Review, the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$57 million (31st March 2022:
approximately HK$63 million), representing a decrease of approximately
9.5%. During the Year Under Review, the global inflation induced the
cautious consumption sentiment. Simultaneously, the operation of retail
shops encountered pressures with the cessation of economic and business
relief subsidies from the Hong Kong Government and an increase in operating
costs. In March 2023, we closed two retail stores located in Ma On Shan and
Wong Tai Sin. In response to the structural change in consumer purchasing
behaviour, the Group has reorganised internal resources and continued
to strengthen the online retail business by sourcing a wider variety of
procurement for high-quality Japanese products.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B W e o B

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st March 2023, the Group's cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$30 million and the net current assets were approximately
HK$118 million. As at 31st March 2023, the current ratio remained at
approximately 1.9 (as at 31st March 2022: approximately 1.9). Out of the
Group’s cash and bank balances, about 38% and 21% were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars respectively. The balance of
approximately 4%, 16%, 10%, 5%, 4% and 2% of its total cash and bank
balances were denominated in Chinese Renminbi, South African Rand,
Malaysia Ringgit, New Taiwan dollars, Singaporean dollars, Euro and others
respectively. The Group's total assets amounted to approximately HK$320
million (as at 31st March 2022: approximately HK$356 million). Net assets
per share amounted to approximately HK$0.86 (as at 31st March 2022:
approximately HK$0.94). Dividend and basic loss per share were approximately
HK$0.01 and HK$0.002 respectively (as at 31st March 2022: approximately
HK$0.01 and basic earnings per share HK$0.066 respectively).

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated resources
and banking facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong. As at 31st March
2023, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts, loans and trade finance
from banks totaling approximately HK$91 million (as at 31st March 2022:
approximately HK$89 million), with an unused balance of approximately
HK$40 million (as at 31st March 2022: approximately HK$20 million). The
Directors believe that the Group's existing financial resources are sufficient to
fulfill its current commitments and working capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2023, the total borrowings of the Group were approximately
HK$50 million (as at 31st March 2022: HK$69 million), which were including
long-term loans, short-term loans and trade finance for financing the daily
business operations, future development plans and construction of office,
warehouse and carpark bays. All the bank borrowings as at 31st March 2023
were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United State dollars, South Africa
Rand, Euro and Singapore dollars. These long-term bank loan, short-term
loans and trade finance were secured by the Company’s corporate guarantees
of approximately HK$76 million and the leasehold properties in Singapore
and Portugal (as at 31st March 2022: HK$76 million). During the Year Under
Review, the Group’s borrowings bore interest at rates ranging from 2.8%
to 11.3% per annum (as at 31st March 2022: ranging from 2.2% to 7% per
annum).

TRENE & K A BUE IR
RZEZ=F=ZA=+—0 "  rx&£EZR&
MIRITHBNR=TEEL  MABEETF
BRHA—E—TNEEETL RZT=Z=
F=ZA=1+—"8  "RHLREFELI1IOR
TE-FZA=Z+—H:419) - RAE
ErIR e RIRTTAEERR + £938% K%21% 7 Bl A
BT RETLYE - HERA4% ~ 16% ~ 10%
5% * 4% N 2% B BIAA R - B3R -
BRELEMNER - FTal - T - BT
MEMERKIE AEBECEEREBENR
—EBE-FEE TR _E_—F=ZA=1+—

B:H=ZBRETAAGE8T) SREEZ
@%’92%0.865’%7?(%:%::¢_ﬂ_+*
H: £094%87T)  SREERENEERD

BI#70.017% 7T 00028 T (R B —_F=A
=+—H: 23L000E T RERERET
#90.06658 7T ) ©

REE—RARBLERLBLZRRTRH
ZHRITHEBRNERBES - R T _=F
—A=t—8" KEIX%%EETTTEL%EG
MEEES  ERNEFIREZH - BEQ
ﬁﬂ: BEBAT(N-_TE-__F= ﬂ +—

CRNTHBEEET  AFHONTEET

(Eéf7ff¢ A=+—H Q= T&8#%
TO)RERREAREIA - EEMHEE  ARERE

B ERRUERARENAEREEES
A -

ijmn*ﬁ
m_%:_i_ﬁ_+ B RNEBENUKE]
- RHEREEIMENG EERTE
ﬂ%ﬂ?%%m@%fgi:ifﬂf+*
H: X"Tha&#Brn) aAABBXKE
fE - E&%Eﬁﬂﬂk AT R RF
iuﬁmmﬁ RZE_=ZF=ZA=+—
$El2ﬁﬂF“M%E T mIF
%% BT RTINS TAE - R EREE R
NEBSBME AR RRFERAOCTESE
BILZ ARIEREF LA EYEERFT
(RZEBEZ=F=A=+—H:tF B8
BIL) c REBEEE  AEBZEEUNT
ﬂim%imwuﬁ_gzzizﬂz+—
CNFEE22%ET%) 2 F KA o

BRAISEERAR - - "B=F5%R

13



14

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Gearing Ratio

As at 31st March 2023, the Group’s gross borrowings repayable within one
year, amounted to approximately HK$76 million (as at 31st March 2022:
approximately HK$99 million). After deducting cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$30 million, the Group’s net borrowings amounted to
approximately HK$46 million (as at 31st March 2022: approximately HK$62
million). The total equity as at 31st March 2023 was approximately HK$173
million (as at 31st March 2022: approximately HK$188 million). Accordingly,
the Group's net gearing ratio, based on net borrowings to total equity,
decreased to 29% (as at 31st March 2022: 33%).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

Most of the Group's transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kang dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to be
under control and that the Hong Kong Government's policy of pegging the
Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the Directors
consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange will remain
minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have been undertaken
by the Group. As at 31st March 2023, the Group had no significant risk
exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest rates, currency
swaps, or other financial derivatives.

Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2023, the properties and bank balances with carrying value
of approximately HK$21 million have been pledged to secure the general
banking facilities granted to the Group's subsidiaries in Singapore, Portugal
and South Africa.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2023.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B W e o B

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2023, the Group had a total of 386 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed its human resources policies and procedures based on the
performance, merits and market conditions. Remuneration packages are
normally reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff
benefits include provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage and
performance-based bonuses (based on the Group’s financial results as well as
individual performance).

Significant Investment, Material Acquisitions
and Disposals of Subsidiaries and Associated
Companies

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any significant
investment, material acquisition and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the Year Under Review.
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Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile
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Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 62, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Chairman of the Company (the
“Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business Administration
from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung has more than 42
years of experience in the electronics industry, and is responsible for the
Group'’s strategic planning and corporate policies.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of the
Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (the “"HKEIA”) and was
nominated as Honorary Vice-chairman of the HKEIA in 2015.

Dr. Hung is also the Group 20 Honorary Chairman (Non-manufacturing II:
Trading (Hong Kong Trade Services Council)) of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and the School Manager of De La Salle Secondary School New
Territories.

Dr. Hung is the hushand of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the Deputy Chairman
and CEOQ of the Company, the brother of Mr. Hung Ying Fung, Measure, an
executive director of the Company and the brother-in-law of Mr. Yeung Kwaok
Leung, Allix, who is also an executive director of the Company. He is also the
father of Ms. Hung Lok Lam, Joyce and Mr. Hung Lok Tin, who are both senior
management of the Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Dr. Hung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold
any major appointments nor professional qualifications. Save as disclosed
in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Equity
and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in this annual report, Dr.
Hung was not interested in any Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) as at 31st March 2023. Save
as disclosed above, Dr. Hung does not have any relationship with any other
Directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 61, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (the “Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”) of the Company. With
more than 42 years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms. Yeung is
responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing and
new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In 2006, Ms.
Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration from Lincoln
University in the United States.

In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor in
the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong (2014—
2015) and Advisory Committee (2010-2014) of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industries. She is the wife of the
Chairman of the Company, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the sister of an
executive director of the Company, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Ms. Yeung
is also the sister-in-law of Mr. Hung Ying Fung, an executive director of the
Company, and the mother of Ms. Hung Lok Lam, Joyce and Mr. Hung Lok Tin,
who are both senior management of the Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Ms. Yeung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did she hold
any major appointments nor professional appointments. Save as disclosed in
the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in Equity and
Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in this annual report, Ms. Yeung
was not interested in any Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as
at 31st March 2023. Save as disclosed above, Ms. Yeung does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Hung Ying Fung,

aged 59, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and both the computer and cosmetic
retail business development of the Group and has over 37 years of experience
in the electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the director of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited. Mr. Hung was
nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po District Commerce
and Industrial Liaison Committee (2021-2023). He is the brother of Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure and the brother-in-law of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the
Deputy Chairman and CEQ of the Company, and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,
an executive director of the Company. Mr. Hung is also the uncle of Ms. Hung
Lok Lam, Joyce and Mr. Hung Lok Tin, who are both senior management of the
Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Mr. Hung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold
any major appointments nor professional qualifications. Save as disclosed
in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests in Equity
and Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in this annual report, Mr.
Hung was not interested in any Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO as at 31st March 2023. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung does not have
any relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders of the Company.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 60, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company. Mr.
Yeung is responsible for the management and business development of the
retail business in the PRC and Asia Pacific region of the Group. He has over 38
years of experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is the brother
of Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the brother-in-law of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure,
the Chairman of the Company and Mr. Hung Ying Fung, an executive director of
the Company. Mr. Yeung is also the uncle of Ms. Hung Lok Lam, Joyce and Mr.
Hung Lok Tin, who are both senior management of the Company.

Save for currently being an executive Director, Mr. Yeung did not hold any
directorship in the last three years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold
any major appointments nor professional qualifications. Save as disclosed in
the paragraph headed “Directors” and Chief Executive’s Interests in Equity and
Debt Securities” in the report of the Directors in this annual report, Mr. Yeung
was not interested in any Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO as
at 31st March 2023. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yeung does not have any
relationship with any other Directors, senior management or substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 59, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since 19th April
2001. Dr. Leung is a qualified accountant, chartered secretary and Chartered
Governance Professional with over 36 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management. He holds the Doctor of Philosophy degree
in Forensic Accounting and Auditing, the Doctor of Philosophy degree in
Management, the Doctor of Education degree in Educational Management, a
Doctor of Business Administration degree, a Honorary Doctor of Accounting,
a Master of Science in Finance and Strategy, a Master of Professional
Accounting degree, a Master of Law in International and Commercial Law, a
Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate Administration, a Bachelor of Commerce
degree majoring in Accounting, and a Diploma in Forensic Accounting. He is
an associate member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Chartered Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada,
CPA Australia, Chartered Governance Institute and the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales.
Dr. Leung is also an adjunct lecturer of the Hong Kong University (SPACE). He
is currently an independent non-executive director of AV Promotions Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8419), and chief financial officer of HM International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8416) He was an executive director in 2021 of
Bamboos Health Care Holdings Limited (stock code: 2293).

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Leung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications, nor did he hold any major
appointments nor professional qualifications. He is not connected with any
Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 67, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since 25th May
2011. He obtained an Honorary Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and
a Diploma in Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979
and 1985 respectively. He joined De La Salle Secondary School, NT in 1981
and was appointed Principal of the School in September 2004. He retired in
August 2016 at the age of 60. Mr. Ku has been the Vice-chairman of the Tai
Po & North District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong Schools
Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the Chairman in the Federation’s
Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He has also been the Vice-
chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association and is
currently a member of the Hong Kong Lasallian Education Council.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ku did not hold any directorship in the last three
years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any securities
markets in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold any major appointments
nor professional qualifications, nor did he hold any major appointments nor
professional qualifications. He is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor
does he have any interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Ip Fu Wa, Benthony,

aged 64, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company since 31st August
2022. He has over 25 years in the finance and administration sectors. He
first started his career in England and later joined an international firm as
an assistant audit manager until 1989. Mr. Ip then pursued his career in
the commercial sector by involving in property investment in the U.S. and
engaging in the trading operations. From 2001 to 2013, he joined a listed
company in Hong Kong and worked as the company secretary and assistant
to the company’s chairman. In 2000, He established his own consultancy firm
to provide consulting services to companies established in Hong Kong and
overseas.

He obtained a bachelor’s degree in mathematics from University College
London in 1981. He has been a member of Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since May 1988. He is also a non-practising member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ip did not hold any directorship in the last three
years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any securities
markets in Hong Kong or overseas, nor did he hold any major appointments
nor profession qualifications, nor did he hold any major appointments nor
professional qualifications. He is not connected with any Directors, senior
management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company, nor
does he have any interests in the Shares which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Senior Management

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 65, Senior Management

has been an executive director of the Company from June 2013 to 31st March
2016. Despite his resignation as an executive director of the Company, he
is the director of five subsidiaries of the Company, namely Langa Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited, MBM Properties (Proprietary) Limited (formerly known as
AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited), Mantech Electronics (Proprietary) Limited
(“Mantech Electronics”), Mobicon International Limited and Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited. Mr. Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to the
Portuguese diaspora by Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho is responsible for the business operations of the Group in South
Africa and Portugal. He joined the Group in December 2001 when Mantech
Electronics was acquired by the Group and became an executive director of
the Company in June 2013. Mr. Moutinho obtained his national certificate in
Electronics from the University of Johannesburg (formerly known as Technikon
Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated at the Johannesburg Technical
College in South Africa in 1977. He is a qualified electrical technician
engineer.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Moutinho did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with any
Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Tsoi Ho Yin,

aged 38, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of the
Company. He is responsible for the financial management of the Group. Mr.
Tsoi is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. Mr. Tsoi joined the Group in September 2016. He has more than 14
years of experience in auditing and accounting.
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Save as disclosed above, Mr. Tsoi did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with any
Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Hung Lok Lam, Joyce,

aged 33, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Videocom Technology (HK) Limited.
Ms. Hung joined the Group in August 2011 and is responsible for overseeing
the product development and brand management of, and merchandising and
marketing wide range of cosmetic products for the customers of the Group.
Ms. Hung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in Psychology from The
University of Hong Kong. She is the daughter of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure
and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, the niece of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the niece
of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom are executive directors of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Hung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
she is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does she have any interests in
the Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

Hung Lok Tin,

aged 32, Senior Management

is the business development manager of Mobicon Group Limited. Mr. Hung
joined the Group in January 2013 and is responsible for overseeing the product
development, merchandising and brand management of the Group. Mr. Hung
holds a Bachelor of Asia-Pacific Studies degree from the Australian National
University. He is the son of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, the nephew of Mr. Hung Ying Fung and the nephew of Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom are executive directors of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. Saved as disclosed above,
he is not connected with any Directors, senior management, substantial or
controlling shareholders of the Company, nor does he have any interests in the
Shares which are required to be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Chooi Chow Sek, Jasmond,

aged 56, Senior Management

is the general manager of Mabicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. in Malaysia
and Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. in Singapore. He graduated from
Federal Institute of Technology in Malaysia with a Diploma in Electronic
Engineering. Mr. Chooi joined the Group in July 2001 and has over 30 years of
experience in distribution of electronic components and test and measurement
instruments. He is currently responsible for the overall operation of these two
companies covering Southeast Asia.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Chooi did not hold any directorship in the
last three years in public companies the shares of which are listed on any
securities markets in Hong Kong or overseas. He is not connected with any
Directors, senior management, substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company, nor does he have any interests in the Shares which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices and
procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise
transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
during the Year Under Review except for the following deviations:

Code Provision B.2.2 of the Code provides that every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the Company provides
that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the number of directors
to retire. As continuation of the services of the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman is a key factor to the successful implementation of any long term
business plan, the Board believes that present arrangement is most beneficial
to the Company and the shareholders as a whole. Save for Mr. Ip Fu Wa,
Benthony who was appointed as an independent non-executive director (the
“INED") for a term of two years since 31st August 2022, the other INEDs are
not appointed for a specific term, all the INEDs are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under
Bye-law 111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company, all directors
have confirmed that they fully complied with the required standard set out in
the Securities Dealing Code throughout the Year Under Review.

Board of Directors
The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share value.

The Board comprises a total of seven directors, with four executive directors,
namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr. Hung Ying Fung, and Mr.
Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony,
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise, which is required by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure. She is also the sister of
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr. Hung Ying Fung is the brother of Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements of
the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate governance,
the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th August 2013. The
directors” biographical information is set out on pages 16 to 23 of this annual
report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and monitoring
of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business strategies and
annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group and oversight of
the management. One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board such that the Board acts in the best interests of
the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed and approved by the Board before execution. All directors have
been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. The
Chairman has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for each
Board meeting to the Company Secretary. With the support of the Company
Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at Board meetings and adequate and reliable information is
given to the Board in a timely manner.

The CEOQ is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The CEO
assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group’s operations.

The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting at the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to
all directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not
less than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to
clearly understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary who
is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular Board
meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting
and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have full access
to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place to enable
directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.
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Four regular Board meetings of the Year Under Review were scheduled in
advance at approximately quarterly intervals; the other two Board meetings
had been convened in relation to the discussions of two continued connected
transactions pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The directors can
attend meetings in person or by means of a conference telephone or other
communications facilities in accordance with Bye-law 136 of the Company's
Bye-laws.

The senior management is respansible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control and
corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company. The
Company provides all members of the Board with monthly updates on the
Group's performance and financial position.

During the Year Under Review, the Company had arranged an in-house
training session to the directors on the implications of late disclosure of inside
information from recent cases. In addition, the directors had attended external
courses, conferences and luncheons organised by various organisations to
further enhance their capacities to carry out directors’ duties.

The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial updates and
other reading materials provided to them concerning latest developments
in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and regulatory
developments.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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According to the records maintained by the Company Secretary, all Directors

REARAMERTFZLE  AEEEHE

pursued continuous professional development during the Year Under Review A BIEAFEEITIHEZEEE - BEFEH
and relevant details are set out below: MR
Type of trainings
EEEE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure AR EE A8B
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BREL T A&B
Mr. Hung Ying Fung MRS A8B
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix 1S EIR A A&B
Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony BEEELE
(appointed on 31st August 2022) (R=F=—#FENNA=1+—HZ(F) AgB
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman%t &
(resigned on 31st August 2022) (R=ZF==—F A =1+—HFT) A&B
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHEL A&B
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric EOKERSEAE A8B

A:  attending seminars/conferences/forums

B:  reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
general business, corporate governance and directors’ duties and
responsibilities

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Save for Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony, who was appointed as an INED of the
Company for a term of two years since 31st August 2022, there is no specific
term of the appointment of the other INEDs. However, all the INEDs are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision B.2.2 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers that
this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to change this
practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman
of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general
meeting. Currently, three directors are subject to retirement by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to Bye-law 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members may, at
any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a director at any
time before the expiration of his/her period of office provided that the notice
of any such meeting convened for the purpose of removing a director shall
contain a statement of the intention so to do and be served on such director
not less than 14 days before the meeting and at such meeting, such director
shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for his/her removal.

A HETRE &R Wi

B BIEAMKLE  ZEmE  CEEBERMNU
NEEBEMNEEZHA - BT LR
Al -

RAL - MR LG ES

BREEELAE(EERZERAARTBILIEHR
TEE BZE-_—_FNA=1+—B#F
HIME) I - BB IERMTTE TN HIET
57 - R - BB IERITEEARE AR
RN RARIHEIRERARARRERAFARS
WESREEREMT - MERRELEER
SPRIZ SPRMECEB2.216 - %GR E IEH
TEEERNEEEHAETIESHGE I
AWBESEREIRREE EFERA -
BITMEBAFEIE B ATERE T g
o

REARRNARARENEG  REERR
BEARGL ER=NDZ—NEH(EFE
TRENBIEERIN ARESR - B =
FREEENERBRRBFASHESR -

REBEARRZ ARARENTE - RAINE
MERAE LEBERARRAEES (I
EmABERERLZES  ERRR2EEMA
MzeRcBEARRAERAULAN - B
EENERBTELUARIRRZRES -
ARRest ZREETERAEELDY

2 iy
ARt as ©

BRAISEERAR - - "B=F5%R

27



28

Corporate Governance Report
AR SEE R &

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 29th August 2013. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. The Board
Diversity Policy aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

As at 31st March 2023, the Board consisted of six male Directors and
one female Director. Among all employees of the Group, male employees
accounted for 56% and female employees accounted for 44%. The Group
believes that the gender ratio of employees is within the reasonable range.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including:

1. to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
corporate governance reports.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on 20th
February 2006 to assist the Board to oversee the remuneration packages of
and determine the remuneration structure of the executive directors and senior
management of the Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties
of the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange's website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2021/2022, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses payable
to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company shall not
exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is
HK$10 million or above but is less than HK$15 million; and (i) 10% of the net
profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group is HK$15 million or above.
Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee also approved to delegate the
authority to the Chairman of the Group to determine the distribution level on
the management bonus payout to all executive directors and each executive
director shall entitle to not less than 10% of the aggregate amount of the
management bonuses.

During the Year Under Review, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Remuneration Committee were tabled to the
Board for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate. On 23rd
February 2023, the Remuneration Committee resolved that a new management
bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the fiscal year 2023/2024
will be adopted which provides that the aggregate amount of management
bonuses payable to all executive directors in respect of any financial year of
the Company shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net
profits of the Group is HK$8 million or above but is less than HK$10 million;
and (ii) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$10 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee also
approved that, with effect from the fiscal year 2023/2024, it shall delegate the
authority to the Chairman of the Group to determine the distribution level on
the management bonus payout to all executive directors and each executive
director shall entitle to not less than 10% of the aggregate amount of the
management bonuses.
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The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the executive
directors and senior management whose names appear in the “Directors’ and
Senior Management's Profile” section for the Year Under Review:

TRINERINEZRSREEREBN | —6
ZHTEENSREBRENAOE oA
Al

HKS$ Number of persons
BT AE
500,001-1,000,000 3
(0-500,000 6
Total number of persons “aAE 9

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th March
2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of the Company. Its
current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony
and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The terms of reference including the responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee have been posted on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange’s website.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Nomination Committee was
amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee adopted a policy for the nomination of the
directors (the “Nomination Policy”). According to the Nomination Policy,
the Nomination Committee will use the following non-exhaustive factors,
including reputation for integrity, accomplishment and experience,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest, the Company's
board diversity policy and the independence of the candidate (in the case of
independent non-executive Directors) as reference in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate. The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of
the Nomination Committee and invite nominations of candidates from Board
members if any, for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The Board shall have the ultimate
responsibility and final decision on all matters relating to its recommendation
of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.

During the Year Under Review, the Nomination Committee held one meeting.

The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to the Board
for noting and for confirmation by the Board where appropriate.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023

RHBEEE
RAATRELEEEN_E——F=A=_+N
BN BEBEARRIZEE 2 RIRERF -
REZECHRAKERELAREEL - ¥R
HEEARREHBL  HET AIRREEE
FEFHIIRREESRBE CBERE TS
FAZS R B A8 Uh K Bt <2 AT A v,

BT ERRE RERELN -
—NE+= A ABERET - BT
ARB A T4 TS 4 o

R ABOR
REAZESERMABRBEST 2BR(1R
ZHER]) - REBRBBEK - EFHEREAE
ZEBENER REREEEUTIER(R
BHOAEZMIFMERR)IELE - BHEW
Emis  REL &R RARE(BEM T
Z RN EEBERNET)  ARFZE
EEMEZTTIBER  UARIREAZBIIE
(BB IFATESMS) - RERZBEED
iRtz Eeed  THFEFEKERS
EARBAR(MB)NERERZEGEE
REZBENAREWIFHESTEKNERESR
ZNE - REEFHEBREAEEMBRRA
BL2E-FMEs  EFSYHMAEREE
BAERKEL  UBHEESEIRTRE -

REBFERN REZEEBEET-RE
& RALEERR RN CIREES

BR  YHEFSER(WEFTE)



Corporate Governance Report
AR SEE R &

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001 to
assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of
the financial reporting process, risk management and internal control system
of the Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Ip Fu Wa,
Benthony, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee was
amended on 28th December 2018 and the amended version has been posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year Under Review. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for noting
and for action by the Board where appropriate.

During the meetings held in the Year Under Review, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

(i) reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year ended
31st March 2022 and the interim results and the financial reports for
the six months ended 30th September 2022;

(i) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit on the
operations and performance of the Group;

(i) reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules and other
statutory compliance;

(iv)  reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk management
systems of the Group;

(v)  reviewed the external auditors” management letter and management'’s
response; and

(vi)  reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2022/2023
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. Subject to any restrictions under
the Laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations, the Company may declare dividend according to the
recommendation of the Board. The Company may in its full discretion decide
not to declare dividend due to various reasons, including but not limited to
maintaining or adjusting the capital structure and reserving more capital to
capture opportunities, etc. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into account, inter alia:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(i)~ the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity position;

(i)~ the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the
Group's lenders;

(vi)  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(vii)  the shareholders” and the investors’ expectation and industry norm;
(viii) the general market conditions; and

(ix)  any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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Attendance of Individual Directors

The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General
Meeting during the Year Under Review is set out in the table below.

HE PGk R L8R
RE@FE SESHFEETRE B4
ZEERY FHEAERH RAZEAT
BHERRTRFAR ZREEN TR -

Ny

IS

Number of meeting(s) attended/held in 2022/2023

R-B-Z /ZB-=EEHRE/ETEERY
Audit Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZES ¥Hzee REZ8e RREF
Name of Director BEfZ ] E 83 R A&
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HelgEt 6/6 N/ATEF N/ATEF 1 "
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl meETL 6/6 NANER 1 N/AEFRR 1L
Mr. Hung Ying Fung g2 6/6 NATER NATER NAT @R 11
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Alli HERTE 6/6 N/ATER N/ATER NARER n
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapmant &
(resigned on 31t August 2022) (R=F=Z%/)1f
=1—HFfF) 306 /4 NATER 0/1 11
Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony ERERL
(appointed on 31st August 2022) (R=F=Z%/)1f
=1—FEZH) 306 3/4 NIATER 11 01
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung PEHEL 6/6 44 N Wi 11
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric BB E 6/6 4/ 11 N/ANERR 11

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial

Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group.

As at 31st March 2023, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going
concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditors” Report on pages 68 to 74 of this
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the Year Under Review were
audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The Audit
Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Auditors’ Remuneration
For the Year Under Review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as follows:

2% B T
REREERE - XM T AL ARBAREE
BEBHFARATZMEMT -

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered FriR RS B ENER
HK$'000

FHIT

Audit services ZEARTS 900
Non-audit services — Interim review IR B AR TS — P BRI 220
1,120

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and the review of their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to identify, analyse, evaluate and mitigate risk exposures that
may impact the continued efficiency and effectiveness of our operation or
prevent it from achieving its business objectives.

The risk management process of the Group is coordinated and facilitated by
our compliance officer. The objectives of risk management are to, inter alia,
enhance the Company’s governance and corporate management processes as
well as to safeguard the Group against unacceptable levels of risks and losses.
The risk management process of the Group will involve, inter alia, (i) an annual
risk identification exercise which involves assessment of the consequence
and likelihood of risks (including documenting those of potentially high impact)
and the development and/or review of risk management plans for mitigating
such risks; (ii) testing of documented risk management procedures at approval
intervals; and (iii) providing our staff and other stakeholders appropriate and
reasonable access to relevant information and training in the area of risk
management.

Our internal control staff has performed an assessment on our internal control
systems including reviewing guidelines and policies which are implemented
through our operational process and the results of the same has been reported
to the Board. An internal audit function is set up to examine key issues in
relation to the financial and operational matters/practices and to provide its
findings and any recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee.
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With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside information,
procedures have been implemented by the Group to ensure that unauthorised
access and use of information are strictly prohibited.

During the Year Under Review, the Board, as supported by the Audit
Committee, our compliance officer and internal audit function, reviewed
the risk management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the mentioned period, and considered
that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also covered
the financial reporting and internal audit function and staff qualifications,
experiences and relevant resources in respect thereof.

Investor Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders
and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board; (i) updated company
news and published announcements of the Group are available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company; and (iii) different means are
opened to the shareholders and investors for communication channel such as
(a) by mail to the Company’s head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince
Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852)
2397 6628; or (c) by fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary reports to
the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises the Board on
governance matters and ensures the board procedures, applicable law, rules
and regulations are followed. During the Year Under Review, the Company
Secretary has confirmed that he has complied with all the qualifications and
training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting (the “SGM”’)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of not
less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon which
all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith proceed to
convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene a SGM, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
three months from the date of the original deposit.
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(ii) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General

(iii)

Meetings (the “GM”)

Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having at the
date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are no less
than 100 shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with
at the GM. It must also be signed by all of the shareholders concerned
and be deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than six weeks before the
GM in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than one week before the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the meeting provided that the shareholders concerned have
deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the
Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists and
deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office in Hong
Kong at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents

During the Year Under Review, the Company has amended its constitutional
documents. Details of the amendments are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 15th July 2022. An up-to-date version of the Bye-Laws of the
Company is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and Company.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023

(i)

(iii)

PR R (TR A e ) RBEEZ
(EY:2

BRAIRIREAE HIREEBEKEHE
—IERER - REABTBLRZEXK
REEHBENRERNS EIREZFTE
R BB+ 27— KA
1002 R ©

ZERERYIAARER  ER 1)
AZM000F 2Rt E - ARABERA
REREZFAIBAEERERBRAE
FRRIEZEIE - LK ETEHEEA
RABRREE  WEIARBEEMER
(M4 232578 LR S8 el K 138 R 70457
SR TERETOME) TRAMWE -
fiFZam k& ERBELRARBA - BIA
RIERRAGEITA DRI E 2 HX
2 HE A EAER - RIZBRBERA
SEITAIN DR —EE #XE -

AABGRAARBZRMDBP ELRZ
BZER  RESKRDBF EEER
HZERBREREER > RAMERRE
KEFERERNE ZHREANNMABBRZE
= IEBEBRATN—EAERREZ
I - AN AR RIRIBOETE ZHLIAF
BERBRRXERBRBANEMER
BRFrRR R EEL 2 X -

Jie R 2 2l
BRAIBERAEEANETRREE
ANEERE  ERREZERA L 2SR
BR . ERXARREF B ER (IS
BB NBEEFB A T BRT04RHEFH
TEEEPLE) TARWE -

R

REBEE - ARAREETEBEXLE - &
AHERRARRBMA T - —FLA
THBZEE - AR ERIMARAEZ A FHA
NS FT RA DRI -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BN~ e BRI

About This Report

During the Year Under Review (defined hereinunder), Mobicon Group Limited
(the “Company”, and its subsidiaries from time to time (our “Group” or
“we")) operated three core business operations, namely: (1) the distribution
of electronic components, electrical components and equipment under the
brand of Mobicon (the “Electronic and Electrical Trading Business”); (2) the
Computer Business which includes (i) the retail sales of computer products
and smartphone accessories under the brand of VideoCom (the “Computer
Retail Business”) and (i) the distribution of computer products and consumer
products under the brand of APower (the “Computer Distribution Business”);
and (3) the Cosmetic and Online Retail Business under the brand of Wishh!
and APower. Our Group's head office is in Hong Kong and has subsidiaries in
South Africa, Mainland China, Malaysia, Singapore, Taiwan and Portugal.

This report (“Report”) is prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” issued by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)). Since our Group's head office and main business are in Hong Kong,
based on materiality principle, unless otherwise specified, this Report focuses
principally on our measures and performance of the environmental and social
aspects of our trading, distribution and retail businesses in Hong Kong.

This Report covers the period from 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023 (the
“Year Under Review"). This Report is accessible at the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s official website
(www.mobicon.com).

Stakeholder Engagement

We understand that the engagement of stakeholders including shareholders,
customers, staff, suppliers and the public is important to our environmental
and social sustainability. During our operation, we keep communicating
effectively with our stakeholders through various channels including employee
warkshops, shareholder meetings, and customer daily contacts to understand
their concerns and expectations. All these feedbacks and communication
help us formulate our strategies in respect of sustainability and serve as the
reference of materiality assessment in this Report.
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Environmental Performance

We understand that environmental protection is important to our business and
social sustainability. In our operation, we use our best endeavour to minimise
our impact on the environment. Reducing, reusing and recycling are our
strategies for commitment to the environment.

Aspect Al: Emissions

In light of the business nature of our Group, no hazardous waste and emission
was produced. Greenhouse gas (“GHG") was our Group’s main emission.
Electricity usage was the major source of GHG emission. Qur Group continues
to improve the operation units’ facilities to enhance resource efficiency and
produce less emission to protect the environment. The amount of emissions
has been reduced as a result of our measures.

Hazardous Waste

In view of our business nature, our Group did not generate substantial
hazardous waste during the Year Under Review. Nevertheless, our Group has
established guidelines to govern the management and disposal of hazardous
waste. All disposal processes must comply with all relevant laws and
regulations.

Non-hazardous Waste

The non-hazardous waste generated by our Group was mainly office paper.
During the Year Under Review, we generated a total of 1,800 kg of waste
paper. To control paper consumption effectively, our Group implements
environmental protection rules and guidance for our staff to follow. We
encourage our staff to make good use of office paper, including collecting
single-sided paper for reuse and double-side used paper for recycle. Also, we
provide green recycle boxes in our workplaces, warehouses and offices for
collecting paper for reuse or recycle.
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During the Year Under Review, our Group had strictly complied with all
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating
to air and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of the hazardous and non-hazardous waste. During the Year Under Review,
our Group did not commit any material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations related to environmental protection, including
but not limited to, the Product Eco-Responsibility Ordinance (Chapter 603 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Chapter 311 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).
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Indicators BE 2021/2022 2022/2023
—_=F=—/ —Eg-=
T F —E-=
Approximately  Approximately
#) #
NO_emissions from vehicles (kg) EEWRE/CWING JBERE
(F7=) 4091 38.39
SO, emissions from vehicles (kg) BHHRE/?(S0 ) FmE (Fr) 0.13 0.12
PM emissions from vehicles (kg) B BERPMBERE (T52) 379 3.56
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) (tonnes) BEREENEE(FEE - 2%3)
(W) 291 264
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1,2 and 3) per floor T F A KIEEMTER)E EREE
area (tonnes/sq m) Pepia = (EED - 2%3)
(W, F75K) 0.04 0.04

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) per
employee (tonnes/employee)
Scope 1 direct emissions (tonnes) — company fleet
o
Scope 2 indirect emissions (tonnes) — electricity
Scope 3 indirect emissions (tonnes) — business air

travel Mz

FE2EVFRE B E (WR)
FE3AFEE B E (WR)

BrEEBBREREEH RS
(BE1 - 2%3) (Mg 1EE) 2 2
SEEIMNEEHERE(E) -7

22 19
—8Bh 269 245
— 2%

0 0

Our Group proactively takes effective measures to reduce emissions of
GHG and exhaust gas. Our Group encourages our staff to use virtual video
conference in order to reduce carbon emission from transportation. Our Group
also encourages our employees to travel by public transport to reduce exhaust
gas and GHG emissions by private cars.

Our Group's five year plan is to reduce the intensity of the emissions of GHG
and exhaust gas by 5%, using the Year Under Review as the baseline year.

Our Group will continuously seek ways to minimise our Group's carbon
footprint and improve its energy saving, as well as reducing emissions,
including but not limited to communicating with our Group’s employees on
the importance of environmental issues, and formulating and implementing
measures in reducing GHG and exhaust gas emissions during the course of
business.
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

During the Year Under Review, our Group continued employing various
energy-saving plans to improve our energy efficiency and to lessen our power
consumption. We educated our staff on the green environment concept
and promoted paperless office, green office and low carbon life. All new
decoration or renovation in our offices or shops used high-efficiency T5
tubes and LED lighting. Room temperature of our offices was always kept
at 25 degree Celsius to minimise unnecessary power consumption. The air
conditioners and lighting of our office/warehouse had various zone controls
to achieve energy efficiency. Employees were encouraged to switch off the
computers, monitors and equipment when they were not in use or when the
employee(s) was/were off duty to save energy. Our staff was requested to
ensure that air conditioners, lighting and office equipment were switched
off when he/she was the last one to leave the office/shop. The amount of
emissions has been reduced as a result of our measures.

JEmA2 : & PR

EREFE  SEBFESAZEMLRE
M TRF R PIRIRE Rk s SRR BE TR RE AR o
BT EBNE TSERECIRRIES @ HE
BRECPRAE HORAZTFEIIRRE
& EERATAE N AEEHHNTEERE
TR - IS WAERI TS E MLEDEFRRA -
EEPHAENETNREHEFERKLE @ UL
BAOTHBERERERE - BAEMERHZE R
MEBAFEAD EEZES - EAERFEAER - &£
EEENE T IR - sREFFARER - B
BN  Brss REMERS - UG ERE
B WHEBARERARAE TEHNE
T BARRLFRE RBHEEFELEMRES
REE R - RMIMEERER R ETEEE
BERBFEE R -

Indicators BE 2021/2022 2022/2023
-z —E—-
—E-F —E=-=
Approximately  Approximately
# #
Total energy consumption (kWh) feREE (TRAE) 582,000 512,000
Total energy consumption per floor area BY A AREERRIREREE
(kWh/sq m) (FEBFFHK) 92 82
Total energy consumption per employee BlEEREES
(kWh/employee) (FEREEE) 4,300 4,200
Direct energy consumption (kWh) BEEREE(TRE) 84,000 73,000
Unleaded petrol Eg e 12,000 9,000
Diesel By 72,000 64,000
Indirect energy consumption (kWh) — electricity Mz REE(TERR)—EN 499,000 439,000

Our business is operated mostly in commercial buildings, industrial buildings
and shopping malls. Water supply/wastewater drainage is generally managed
by the respective building/mall management office. The management offices
do not provide meter or data in respect of the consumption level to individual
tenant, so our Group does not possess information in respect of water
consumption for disclosure. During the Year Under Review, our Group did not
encounter any problems in sourcing water that is fit for purpose. Our Group
encourages water conservation and reduces water wastage in our operation
whenever possible.

Our Group's five-year plan is to reduce energy consumption by 5%, using the
Year Under Review as the baseline year. Our Group will continue to educate
the employees on energy-saving in order to reduce energy consumption.
Changes will be made to our policies if our Group identifies any measures that
are detrimental to environmental protection.
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Our Group is principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment and computer products
and mobile accessories and trading of cosmetic products, hence does not
involve a significant amount of packaging materials for the finished products.
Nevertheless, for other resources consumed from our business activities, the
Company upholds the principle of resources management and is committed to
the proper use of all resources.

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

Although the business nature of our Group has little impact on the
environment and natural resources, we still use our best endeavour to
minimise our impact on the environment. Our Group educates our employees
on environmental protection concepts, such as using less paper, using
electronic communication (e.g. email, mobile phone Apps) to deliver
information and avoiding unnecessary printing and use of paper and ink. The
default setting of our Group network’s printers is double-sided printing to
minimise paper consumption. We encourage our staff to print on both sides,
reuse one-side-printed paper or recycle paper, and to use network copier for
sending or saving files to minimise paper consumption. At our warehouse, our
carton boxes are reused repeatedly and recycled when they are no longer fit
for use. At our offices, we provide recycle bins for waste paper and plastic
bottles and arrange for collection periodically to reduce waste disposal and
recycle materials. Old defective computers, office equipment and printer
cartridges are also collected by recyclers to reduce environmental pollution.
Our Group is committed to reducing waste generated from our business
operations. We avoid purchasing new equipment when decorating and/or
renovating our office/shops.
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Indicators BE 2021/2022 2022/2023
—F=—/ =B==
T F —E-=
Approximately  Approximately
A A
Office paper purchased (kg) MAZEARAEES(TR) 1,800 1,800
Carton purchased (pce) AR = (1) 12,000 11,800
Plastic bag purchased (pce) BEHES (H) 7,000 6,800
Paper/carton recycled (kg) ?%&/ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@%%ﬂzﬁ) 8,000 7,800
Plastic bottle recycled (pce) Bpus (14) 1,200 1,000
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42

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B~ e BRI

Aspect A4: Climate Change

Our Group recognises the harm brought by climate change to our business
operations, stakeholders and the global economy. Our Group has been closely
monitoring the impact of climate change and is committed to mitigating its
effect on our Group.

Physical Risks: The increased frequency of extreme weathers, such as
typhoons and heat wave can disrupt our Group's business operations, for
instance, hindering the transportation and travelling of the employees, and
interrupting our Group's sale and distribution of products to customers. To
minimise potential risks, our Group has adopted work contingency plan to
ensure the safety of the employees and smooth business operations of our
Group under extreme weather conditions.

Transition Risks: Our Group expects that more stringent climate legislation
and regulations to combat climate change and support global efforts in
decarbonisation. The enhanced disclosure in the environmental, social
and governance reports required by the Stock Exchange is likely to result
in the increase in compliance costs. Our Group's reputation is likely to be
affected if our Group fails to implement relevant measures to meet climate
change compliance requirements. Our Group is committed to assessing the
effectiveness of the existing measures and plans in tackling climate change
and monitoring the climate-related trends and policies, so that our Group can
adopt appropriate measures to avoid non-compliances fines, economic loss
and/or reputational risks owing to delayed actions.

Social Performance

Employment and Labour Practices

Aspect B1: Employment

Human capital is a valuable asset of our Group for the sustainability and
growth of our business. As at 31st March 2023, our Group had a total of
386 full-time employees and 19 short-term and part-time staff. Qur Group
follows the principle of meritocracy and employs talent, regardless of gender,
age, marital status, family status, race and religion. All employees are
treated equally and have the same opportunity. To the best information and
knowledge of our directors, there were no discrimination and no harassment
cases reported in our Group during the Year Under Review. The recruitment,
promotion and remuneration of our staff are based on their abilities and
performances without any discrimination.
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To attract, motivate and retain talent, our Group provides our employees with
competitive remuneration and welfare. Based on personnel performance and
our Group's business performance, there will be a discretionary bonus at
year-end. Our Group will review the remuneration and welfare provided to
individual staff every year in order to maintain our market competitiveness on
the retention of human resources.

During the Year Under Review, our Group had strictly complied with all
relevant employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong that have a
significant impact on us relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hour, rest period, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefit and welfare, including but not limited to the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hog Kong) and
all other relevant ordinances. During the Year Under Review, no claims of
employment matters were brought against our Group by our employees. Our
Group provides more holidays and rest periods than the statutory requirements
to our employees. In addition to the entitlement of paid annual leave and
statutory holidays, the office staff has paid rest days on Saturday and Sunday,
and the staff of Wishh! shops has five (5) days off per month. Our Group also
provides medical insurance benefits to our employees.

Working hours and rest periods are clearly stated in our Group’s employee
handbook (“Employee Handbook”) and comply with the local employment
laws.

Our Group compensates our employees according to the statutory
requirements. Unreasonable dismissal under any circumstances is strictly
prohibited. There was no material non-compliance on part of our Group
relating to compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest periods during
the Year Under Review.

To boost our staff motivation and increase their sense of belonging, our Group
organises birthday broadcasting party and snacks sharing. We offer various
kinds of awards to outstanding staff on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis,
e.g. The Best Attendance Award, The Best Cleaning Award and The Most
Customer Visit Award. Our Group has been hiring hearing-impaired people as
full-time employees for several years.

AWE| - BB RREAS - KERE TRH
BEFNMFHMMER - RARBE TEA
RPN EBEERHRANFEREABIBEL
BEEETERNE TEHMMEF - R
BMEN S LRFANEROBEF A

REEFE  SEERETEEMBEERY
BN iR R - FREER BT - TVERFE - BRI -
FTE#E Lot REGEUAREMEER
BREERFENHABEERAN - B21EE8
FRABBEBIEHN(FBEEHFEIE) -
CaBERTES FTEERG) ) (BB A5 55485
) AFEIEGBINEBEDIFE08E) &
HibBRAD) - REIEEEE @ RETMEE
REEBREEMNEERHIRE -£KERE
TRENBHTEEE LR ENAES
BREFFREARBEIN WAEETEE
EHAKEHHKER - Wishh EETH
AEBRXORER - £BEIMAE TIRHE
BERBRIER] o

SENETFMRERETFM])FHAME
FEATEREMRE - Z LB ET 2R
B

SERBATEEREEBETME - MK
BEAMIBER T TEERE - REBEFE -
B BT A B B e AR R - TR I
RERENERTERIBTN -

BN E T T AR A R B 5
B EEBREBERHITR - THE
B/BE/ GERULABEEMALETE
B MREL S REEREREDE
FR%% - EERESFRARBALAS
BiES -

BRAISEERAR - - "B=F5%R

43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
B~ e BRI

2022/2023
—E=-=
Number of total Employee ETAH —E-=E
By gender gl -ba
Male B 56%
Female pegi 44%
By age RERAERIE D
30 or below 30BREIA T 17%
31-40 31-405% 29%
41-50 41-50%% 26%
51 or above IR A 28%
By employment category REEERE D
Senior management = 3%
Middle management i 12%
General —H% 81%
Short-term and part-time KRR B T 4%
By geographical region Rt EE 5
Asia M %
Europe B 3%
Africa FEM 56%
2022/2023
—E=-=
Employee turnover rate BITRAR —E-=
By gender BRI D
Male B 25%
Female peg i 26%
By age RERARE S
30 or below 30BREIA T 46%
31-40 31-405%% 24%
41-50 41-505% 2%
51 or above S1ERE A 19%
By geographical region B EE 5
Asia EEDA 38%
Europe BOM 0%
Africa JEM 18%
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety

We are committed to providing a healthy and safe working environment
to every employee and to providing our employees with the appropriate
equipment, safety information and training. Our Group also helps improve our
employee’s concept of work safety and health by providing relevant trainings.
Our Group further endeavours to build a healthy and safe working environment
with zero accident and zero work injury.

Prolonged usage of computers is a common problem for our employees in
office. In Hong Kong, our Group provides every employee in office with a
glass stand to elevate the position of the computer monitor or notebook
to encourage staff to have a correct posture when using a computer. We
endeavour to provide a healthy and comfortable working environment for our
employees.

In response to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, our Group is well-
positioned to prevent and control measure in order to safeguard the health
and safety of our staff. We provide pandemic prevention materials to our
staff, the health and safety of employees in times of the pandemic remains
our Group’s primary concern.

During the Year Under Review, our Group had complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting our employees from occupational
hazards, including but not limited to, the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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—EF-F —==—/ —E-=

Occupational Health and Safety Data E¥@EHZZHIE T4 =T —E-=
Work related fatality ETE@EEMIETR 0 0 0
R 0°R 0R
Work injury cases >3 days TER3KR 0 0 0
0%R 0= 0=
Work injury cases <3 days THERSK 0 0 0
0= 0 0=
Lost days due to work injury ATEERTIERE 0 days 0 days 0 days
(7N (17N 0x
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

Our Group believes staff development and training are key factors for the
development and growth of our business. We promote lifelong continuing
learning among our staff and encourage them to equip themselves with
knowledge of the latest technology or development for improvement in
work performance. Our Group provides continuous on-the-job training to our
employees to enhance their knowledge and skill. We also encourage our
staff to attend courses or trainings for personal professional development
organised by external entities.

Our Group was awarded “Happy Company” by the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation in 2022.

JEEIB3 : R/ RAE |
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2022/2023

===
Percentage of employees trained ZIEEREMATE S —=E==
Employee trained by gender BRI D
Male B4 38%
Female pegi3 46%
Employee trained by employment category BIERERE D
Senior management =) 100%
Middle management F 69%
General —#% 37%
The average training hours for employees by gender and employment category R EEEEE @ IRU R RIERERZIDHES
during the Year Under Review are as follows: RS

2022/2023

—=E-=
Hours of employees trained ZIEERE —ZE-=
By gender RMERIE D
Male B 14
Female pegc 15
By employment category REEERE D
Senior management = 6
Middle management i 21
General —# 14
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards

During the Year Under Review, our Group had complied with all relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to preventing
child and forced labour, including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Our Group did not have material non-
compliance in relation to laws and regulations regarding prevention of child
and forced labour during the Year Under Review. We do not accept any forms
of forced labour.

We also prohibit employing child labour at any working place under any
circumstances. To ensure that job applicants have met the legal working age,
our Group will inspect job applicant’s documents and qualifications strictly
during the recruitment process to ensure that all relevant laws and regulations
in respect thereof are complied with, and all records will be kept for re-
inspection when needed. During the Year Under Review, we did not identify
any issue related to child labour or forced labour within our Group.

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Our Group was awarded IS09001 certification, and we are committed to
maintaining a high standard on purchase and supply chain management to
improve our operational efficiency and manage the environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.

Our Group has our own procurement process to ensure the quality of our
supply chain. We aim to build and maintain trust with suppliers to ensure
stable and reliable cooperation. To ensure the quality of our suppliers, we
implement procedures for the suppliers selection, including but not limited
to, performing due diligence on the new suppliers and regular review of the
supplier performance with a view to ensuring the products provided to our
Group are of high quality and safe for their purposes. Our Group also assesses
the suppliers’ track record in complying with environmental practices and
social responsibility when selecting suppliers.

Our Group had a total of 1,241 suppliers during the Year Under Review.
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The following is an analysis of our Group’s number of suppliers by
geographical area during the Year Under Review:

Number of suppliers by geographical area

AT R B BEF E iR E o M AR S B HE
EHEN D -

ZES I NHEERRE

Asia oM 52%
Africa JEM 33%
Europe BM 15%
Total e 100%

Operating Practices

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Product quality is very important to our business and customers and we
have a system to ensure product quality and safety. Under our supply chain
management, our suppliers are requested to provide relevant documents
and certification to us, and we shall ensure that the quality of our products
complies with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on us relating to health, safety and intellectual property right matters. If there
are any defects in the products supplied by the suppliers, our Group would
require the suppliers to provide alternatives so that the products meet the
legal and environmental requirements, and are fit for our Group’s uses and
purposes. Qur Group constantly communicates with the suppliers to ensure
product quality.

We also use our best endeavour to ensure that our advertisements and
communication to customers do not contain any false and misleading
messages. It is our Group’s policy that if any product is found to have health,
safety and/or labelling issues, the sale and/or distribution of such product will
be suspended immediately. Our Group performs internal checks and testing
before the products are sold and delivered to the customers. Unsatisfactory
products will be rectified until they reach the requisite standards. If there is
any quality issue to our Group’s products, our Group is prepared to recall the
products and remedial actions will be implemented immediately. Analysis
of the defective products will be carried out to avoid future recurrence. Our
Group strives to maintain good relationship with the major customers and is
keen to develop business relationships with new customers.
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During the Year Under Review, our Group did not (i) record any products sold
or shipped which were subjected to recalls for safety and health reasons; or {ii)
any complaints in relation to our products sold or services provided.

During the Year Under Review, our Group complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to advertising
and labelling, e.g. the Trade Descriptions Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). There was no material non-compliance relating to health and
safety, advertising and labeling that have a significant impact on our Group
during the Year Under Review.

We support the protection of intellectual property rights, and comply with
relevant legislation, including the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Trade Marks Ordinance (Chapter 559 of the laws of
Hong Kong). Our Group respects, observes and protects intellectual property
rights and undertakes not to sell products that infringe intellectual property
rights.

During the Year Under Review, our Group was not aware of any material
infringement of intellectual property rights of our Group.

We respect customer’s privacy and we comply with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in protecting customer
personal data. We only collect personal data relevant and necessary to
conduct our business. Unless with the customer’s consent or being compelled
by law or for reasons of obtaining professional services such as legal and
audit, we will not disclose customer personal data to any organisation or
person not belonged to our Group. Also, our Employee Handbook also clearly
prohibits any unauthorised disclosure of the personal data of our customers.
During the Year Under Review, our Group had complied with all relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on us relating to privacy matters
and there was no non-compliance case concerning breaches of customer
privacy or losses of personal data of our customers.

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

Our Group is committed to maintaining our ethics and integrity at the highest
standard in business. We have zero tolerance to corruption and bribery. All
directors and staff must strictly comply with our Group’s employee conduct
code to prevent any action of bribery and corruption and they shall also follow
relevant rules and guidelines when any conflict of interests arises. Our Group
provided anti-corruption education and training to the Directors and our
employees to raise their awareness in ethical and corruption issues during the
Year Under Review.
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[t is our Group’s policy that our employees are not allowed to solicit or accept
any advantages from our customers, potential customers, or company business
partners. The types of advantages and interests include but not limited to
money, gift, loan, fee, reward, employment, contract, service and favour.

Our Group has a whistle-blowing policy and we encourage the employees to
report any suspected corruption case directly to our Group’s top management.
When a report is received, our Group will conduct immediate investigations
and take appropriate actions to rectify the situations as soon as practicable.
The identity of the whistleblower is protected to avoid unfair treatment.

Our Group has been in strict compliance with laws and regulations related to
anti-corruption, including the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). During the Year Under Review, there was no legal
case regarding bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering brought against
our Group or our employees.

Community

Aspect B8: Community Investment

Our Group has a strong commitment to corporate social responsibility to
support the long-term development of the communities. We endeavour
to participate in and organise activities that will bring positive influence
to the communities and take into consideration the communities’ needs
and interests. We concern youth education and vulnerable persons. We
encourage our employees to participate in community charitable activities to
help those in need. Qur Group has continuously employed hearing-impaired
people as full-time employees for several years. Our Group has also provided
placement opportunities to secondary school students. Our Group had been
awarded the Caring Company Logo for 16 consecutive years by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service in recognition of our achievement in corporate
social responsibility in areas such as “Giving”, “Employing the Vulnerable”,
“Caring the Employees” and “Caring the Environment”. Our Group joined Love
Teeth Day 2022/2023 in order to sponsor “Oral Health Service for the Needy”
supported by The Community Chest.

During the Year Under Review, charitable and other donations made by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$2,000.
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HKEX’s Environmental, Social and Governance Wiz pr{IR5E - L& L E R W 418
Reporting Guide Index 5I& 51

Subject Areas and Aspects

FEHRNEE

Corresponding
section

MR EE

A. Environmental
AR

Aspect A1: Emissions
EEAT : By

General Disclosure

—RRIREE

KPIAT.1
KPI A1.2
KPIA1.3
KPIA1.4
KPI' A1.5

KPI A1.6

Environmental
RIR

Information on:

BUABERIAEREBEN - MKRTHHEE5  BEREFEE
MEEEEH -

(a)  the policies; and

(a) KR

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

b) BEFEHBETAGERZENHREERELROINER

The types of emission and respective emissions data
et A M AR R B R

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
RERBAHERTE
Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
FELBEREEMEERTR
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
FEEREEEMEERTR

Description of measures to mitigate emission and results achieved
fHUREHERE B FE i KPS RR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction, initiatives and results achieved
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Subject Areas and Aspects

FRERNER

Corresponding
section

M EE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
[EEA2 : ERER

General Disclosure

—RIKE
KPI A2.1

KPI A2.2
KPIA2.3

KPI A2.4

KPI A2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BERFERER(BIERIR - KREMMRMED)BIBE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type and intensity
REREIDHNBEE R SHERRERERTE

Water consumption in total and intensity

BFEKERTE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and result achieved

et sE R (e A e at &l PSR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved

i USREGE A KR S RI A E R RERE - AR BR8P
SR

Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to per
unit produced

MR BEMHNEERBEEEM(EE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHA3 : BIRRRAER

General Disclosure

—RRIREE
KPI A3.1

Aspect A4: Climate Change
[EEAL : RIZE L

General Disclosure
—RR I EE

KPI A4.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BAR BT AL RIERAABIRERERZENBER ©

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them

R EREBHRB LR RRERNEAZERCEKNER G
ZH17E

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

BRI N EEHE R R HETAEEXENETEARGERER
HVEER

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer and the actions taken to manage them
AR R MR D R BN e BB TTANERRIREBRE
BB R
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Corresponding

Subject Areas and Aspects section
FEGRNEE HEEES
B. Social
BitE
Aspect B1: Employment Employment
[EEB1 : &% =
General Disclosure Information on:
— MR ER BRH R AEE  BERE - TERS - BRE - TE#E %

Tt~ RIEAR A R B A8 AR FIE -

(a)  the policies; and

(a) BE: K

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working

hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other

benefits and welfare.

b) BEFEHBTAFERZENHEEEZLROINER
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical

region

BRI EERE - FiBR KRB D HES B
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, employment type, age group and

geographical region

RIER - FEER KRB D MEBRKLE X
Aspect B2: Health and Safety Health and Safety
[EEB2 : REHEZE fEREZ 2

General Disclosure

—fRIFR

KPI B2.1
KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Information on:

BHARFZ2TERERREEERMEBE L EEN

(a)  the policies; and

(a) X R

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to provision of a safe working environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

b) BEFEHBETAGERZENHR@MERELROINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

ETERERE M T AB R LR

Lost days due to work injury

EIBEEAIIERE

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they

are implemented and monitored
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Corresponding

Subject Areas and Aspects section
FTEHRNET HEEES
Aspect B3: Development and Training Development and
Training

[ETEB3 : /R KIEI R LE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work and description of training activities.
— MR ER BRARITEERIT LEBE N MBS REEMBER - il

%jj o
KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g.

senior management, middle management)
RN REEEN(NERERE  FRAERES) ESNZIIE
SN

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category

BRI MREERIE D - BRREETKZIIN IR

Aspect B4: Labour Standards Labour Standards
[EMEBA : & T %8| 25 T AR
General Disclosure Information on:
—RRHEER EHEFEETREHISTH

(a)  the policies; and

(@) BER: K&

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
b) BEFHETAGERZENHRBEEZLROINER
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour
R B HIA B HEAR 2 2 T Ko 25 T
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Corresponding

Subject Areas and Aspects section

FRERNER HEEES

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management Supply Chain
Management

[ETEBS : HEHEEE HrEEER

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

— MR EE EEHERNRE TS RRBR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region

i & o e 2B
KPI'B5.2 Description of practices

relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices are
being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored

i E IR HERMIED - MERTEBELMNEEREE

AR BRIEDINIMITMEERITA

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored
it AR A RS A IRIF It & Bl R A B b5 I B ESE
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and

monitored
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Corresponding

Subject Areas and Aspects section
FTESHENER HERELH
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility Product Responsibility
[ETEB6 : EmEE EmBE
General Disclosure Information on:
— MR EE BRMRHERNRBNREREZ S BE FEELEEEMNU

RARITER

(a)  the policies; and

(a)  BK: K

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
b) BEFHETAGERZENHRBEEZNLROINER
KPI BB.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons
EERDEXEMAETRL 2 HERRAMARKS B S L
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with
BB Em MRS IRFE B AR EE A
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
ft BB A M R[R S S ERE A VB
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures
i oo A E AR R E [ AR
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored
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Subject Areas and Aspects

FEERNET

Corresponding
section

M EE

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption
[B®EB7 : RES
General Disclosure

—RRIREE

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

KPI B7.3

Information on:
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(a)  the policies; and

@) BER: K

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

b) ETFEHEITABEAZENEBEEZLROIRER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against

the issuer or its employees during the Year Under Review and the outcomes of

the cases

REBEFEANEETARHES ROV EEENE THFARED

BB REFahks

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they

are implemented and monitored

a1 e MR MR - U RABERITRER A

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff
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Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EEBS : HERE

General Disclosure

—fRIER

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities” interests.
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Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport)
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Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area
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Report of the Directors
HE

The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the Year Under
Review.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic components,
electrical components, equipment and computer products and mobile
accessories and trading of cosmetic products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Business Review

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong), is set out
in the sections “CEQ’s Statement” on pages 7 to 10 and “Business review"” on
pages 11 to 12, of this Annual Report respectively. An analysis using financial
key performance indicators, a discussion of the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, and its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group as well as an account
of the key relationships with its stakeholders are set out in the sections “Five
Year Financial Summary” on pages 175 and 176, “Revenue and Segment
Information” on pages 127 to 133, and “Major Customers and Suppliers” of
this Report of the Directors on page 65 respectively. Detailed information on
the environmental, social and governance practices adopted by the Group is
set out in the sections headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
("ESG Report”) of this annual report.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the Year Under Review are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 75 and 76 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK 0.5 cents per ordinary share,
totalling HK$1 million, which was paid on 23rd December 2022.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK cent 0.5 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$1 million for the Year Under Review.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 7th August 2023
to 10th August 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend the annual
general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated at Shops 1712—1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 4th August 2023. The Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from 16th August 2023 to 18th August 2023, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected, and the final dividend
will be paid on 29th August 2023. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
completed share transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Hong Kong Registrars Limited at the above address for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on 15th August 2023.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
Under Review are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year Under Review are set out in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year Under
Review amounted to approximately HK$2,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year Under Review are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the Year Under
Review. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s listed shares during the Year Under Review.

Directors
The directors who held office during the Year Under Review and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman
(resigned on 31st August 2022)
Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony
(appointed on 31st August 2022)
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Hung Ying Fung, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ip Fu Wa, Benthony,
are required to retire by rotation under the Company’s bye-laws and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.2.3 of the Code, the length of tenure (i.e. serving
more than nine years as an independent non-executive director of a company)
is one of the factors in determining the independence of an independent
non-executive director, and the further appointment of an independent non-
executive director shall be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
shareholders of the company.
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Notwithstanding Dr. Leung Wai Cheung (“Dr. Leung”) has served as an INED
for more than 21 years since 18 April 2001, the Board is of the view that
his independence is not affected by his long service as Dr. Leung met the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Dr. Leung
is also independent from the business operations of the Company and he is
not related to any of the Directors, controlling or substantial shareholders of
the Company. Dr. Leung has from time to time provided independent advice
to the Board and continues to demonstrate a firm commitment to his role as
an INED throughout the past years. The Nomination Committee and the Board
have considered his contributions and services to the Company and reviewed
his expertise and professional qualifications and his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to determine whether Dr. Leung satisfies the
selection criteria of the nomination policy of the Company. Both the Board and
the Nomination Committee believe that he possesses the required character
and integrity to act as a director of the Company. Hence, the Board considers
that Dr. Leung as independent and recommends the re-election of Dr. Leung
as an independent non-executive director at the upcoming annual general
meeting.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure who did not enter into any service contract with the Company) has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of
three years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons may be
granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”) upon
and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the New Share Option
Scheme.

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share
Option Scheme up to the date of this annual report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013. No new share option scheme was
adopted afterwards.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in

Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2023, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the

“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

B R FETHN BRI K E
B gr Z Wt
RZZB_=F=A=+—0 XRAGES
REETHABAREBEALTHARE K
HEEE (TE REBHFLBER([ES
NEREIERA ) BXVED) 2 Ik - R %D
BEFF  BARRARRRBREIEFLHAE
RPIEI2EFE 2 Bz m KR E
HERIBEESF N RAEIGRHIEXVEIET R0 F
H I ETAERETES X HNIRLETA
(MEEFA D BSITHERRFREBBER
AR RR (BT ]) 2 #am MR A R
T

AR 2 B 0. 107 o 2 5 3

Number of shares

R EE
Long/short Personal Family Corporate

Name of Director position interests interests interests Percentage
EEpnE HE/ RE BAREzR KBRS NEER Bt
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
HRlEtE L 35} (Note a)

(Fff5Ea)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long - 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BEEL L "R (Note a)

(Fff5Ea)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 - - 13.50%
HEEEE HE
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long - 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
HEIR L& HE (Note b)

(FftsEb)
Notes: 3T

(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.
Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were deemed
to be interested in 90,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO. Dr. Hung Kim Fung,
Measure and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same interest and duplicated

each other.

(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company owned as to 50%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50% by his wife, Ms. Wan Lam Keng.
Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were deemed to be
interested in 30,000,000 shares of the Company under SFO. Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix
and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated each other.
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(b) It 5 A% 19 F4 Bestmark Management Limited 3% 5+ 5%
REDPIBEGEREEREZTFENRBLLHES
50% K2 50%H s o EIt - RIBESF REEES - 15
B BR o A 2 BB ARIB 20 45 AR 1E 430,000,000k AR A
ARG R HEAEZ - HGRREEREMELZ T
RIEEBEREZR  MEZE_H -



Report of the Directors
# G ok

Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the Year Under Review, the Company had adopted a Code of Conduct
regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code under Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable enquires with the directors
of the Company, the Company was of the view that the directors had complied
with the said Code of Conduct throughout the Year Under Review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising from
the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management (as the
case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed and shall
be under constant review.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no contract of
significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company or
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the Year Under Review.

Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in Contracts
No contracts of significance between the controlling shareholders and any of
its subsidiaries and the Group was made during the Year Under Review.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations
During the Year Under Review, as far as the Board and the management
are concerned, there was no material breach or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has material impact on the
business and operations of the Group.

i 77 52 oy Z RS
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RBHR S 2 RTER BHRTEETE
£ _E TR B0 SR R AT B R R
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ADFRA  EEREEFE 8T it
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i o
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2023, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

2 B R R H At A R A 2 W i
A 2 R
R-ZEBE-_ZF=ZA=1+—8 BARIES
o » TOUALT(PBEERARRESHE
BITHA B )RARTIG REEKR D
BIRIEFES M EEFIEXVBE2RID I 2
ESCERAR R E 2 AR -

Number of shares

BRoEE
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interests Percentage
2/ R HAaKE BEREEA RERER BOE
M2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 - 45%
e (Note a)
(P 5Ea)
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 - 15%
5=} (Note b)
(P 5ED)
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long - 30,000,000 15%
=B+ IS (Note b)
(FF5ED)
Notes: MIsE -
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's  (a) BFLHESREETRABRBRARBEBES 2
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. s | —EkdEHa) -
(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's  (b) F2HEBREFETBRABRBRARBEBESZ

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management Limited
and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2023, according to the register of
interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFQ,
there was no person who had any interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year Under Review.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
During the Year Under Review, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to
its five largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the Year Under Review attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

— the largest supplier 8%
—five largest suppliers in aggregate 23%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business
None of the Directors or their respective associates was interested in, apart
from the Group’s business, any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Connected Transactions

During the Year Under Review, the Group entered into certain transactions
with “related parties” in the normal course of business as defined under the
applicable accounting standards and the details of the material related party
transactions (the “Transactions”) are disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Transactions falls under the
definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, but are fully exempted from
shareholders’ approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions

The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from M-Bar
Limited (“M-Bar”). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned as to 30% by Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung
Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of
whom being the executive directors of the Company.
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On 30th September 2020, Mobicon Holdings Limited ("MHL"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a new tenancy agreement with M-Bar
to renew the lease agreements in respect of the lease agreements in respect
of Units 1-11 on 7th Floor, Units 1—4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor,
New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk Street, San Po
Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of one year from 1st October 2020 to
30th September 2021 at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$187,000.

On 30th September 2021, MHL entered into a new tenancy agreement with
M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the same premises for a term of
one year from 1st October 2021 to 30th September 2022 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$187,000.

On 30th September 2022, MHL entered into a new tenancy agreement with
M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the same premises for a term of
one year from 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2023 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$187,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the Group and ancillary
use.

On 30th September 2020, MHL entered into a new tenancy agreement with
M-Bar to renew the lease agreement in respect of Portion of 3rd Floor,
Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong for a
term of one year commencing from 1st October 2020 to 30th September 2021
at an aggregated monthly rental of HK$45,000.

On 30th September 2021, MHL entered into a new tenancy agreement with
M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the same premises for a term of
one year from 1st October 2021 to 30th September 2022 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$45,000.

On 30th September 2022, MHL entered into a new tenancy agreement with
M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of the same premises for a term of
one year from 1st October 2022 to 30th September 2023 at an aggregated
monthly rental of HK$45,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary office (in respect of
Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for storage (in respect of 3rd Floor).

During the Year Under Review, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$2,784,000 (Note 28) to M-Bar.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the condition
that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (ii) the realisable value
of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$63,829,000 (2022: approximately HK$65,831,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 175 and 176.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the Year Under Review were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire upon
the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment
of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th June 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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B &6 EH AR R E
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF
MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 174, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31st March 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31st March 2023,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Inventory valuation and allowance

[BR 38 s = IH

g FEARERMNEEAE - RA
HABGRAMBRENBARAZENS
o ELEIERERMET BERANTR
RRMATRBETREN - RITEHE
LERRHEBOER -

A7 B Al 16 e 438 £

Refer to Note 2.12, Note 4(a) and Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

B2 A MR MR TE2.12 - M eE4(a) MR8 o

We identified the valuation and allowance of inventories as a
key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the judgements associated with determining the amount of
allowances on inventories.
ENGFEAREERBGONBREABEEZ - INLETE
FEREGSERMENERAE  RtBMARTESE
WiGERBEREARETEIE -

At 31st March 2023, the Group held inventories of approximately
HK$165,939,000. As described in the accounting policies in Note
2.12 to the consolidated financial statements, inventories are
carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value. As a result,
management applied judgement to assess the net realizable value
of slow-moving stocks based upon the stock ageing report with
reference to the current marketability and latest selling prices
of the relevant inventories. Stocks are written down to their net
realizable value where this falls below their cost.
RZEZ=F=A=+—H ' EBXEFBENEEYD
73165,939,000/8 7T » MR & M MK T2.122 &5
BERFt - FEIRKAES ISR FE(UREER
E)ARR - Bt - EEERBEFERKRSRE - 25 10H
FEMNERAHE REMIHEERE - ER AT
FHETFENIEIRFE  FEREENEKAE -
EEMRE LR #RFE -

Our audit procedures in relation to inventory valuation and
allowance mainly included:

BfE FREAEELRGNREF IR

e Fvaluating whether inventories were stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value at the reporting date by
comparing the sales prices of inventories subsequent to the
reporting date with their carrying values as at 31st March
2023,

s BBMHERMRIGFEEERFEN T _=F
=R=t—HBZEEEELE  FEXREAHF
EREEAANERAIBRFEMER ZREET
iR s

e Evaluating analysis and assessment made by Management
with respect to slow-moving inventories;

o HEEEEFHTEMIEZ DM RS

e Checking for individual products that invoiced costs have
been correctly recorded; and
s REFERENERD FRTEHRIEZER K

e Assessing whether items in the inventory ageing report
were classified within the appropriate ageing category by
inspecting individual items in the report with the underlying
documentation.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables

bR 38 kS IH )
G i B 5 Wk ok

Refer to Note 2.10, Note 3.1(b), Note 4(b) and Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
BAMFEATERRMEE2.10 « HIFE3.1(b) ~ B 5T4(b) K FHIzE19 »

As at 31st March 2023, the Group had trade receivables amounted
to approximately HK$38,119,000 (net of provision for impairment
of approximately HK$1,908,000).
RZZEZ=F=A=+—H  EBE5ENEKZZENR
#97% 38,119,000/ 7T (B HIBR BB 5 491,908,000/8 7T ) ©

We identified the valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter due to the estimation of expected credit losses involved a
significant level of judgement by management to determine the
use of internal and external data from various sources to establish
the historical credit loss experience and to adjust this experience
for expected future changes, recognizing that these factors are all
subject to a certain level of uncertainty.
ERAEEREEEE S NEEEBIERERAE - X
RTER B NRARE N RN BIRE(E R - LAERE
EBRAEEEBRLRREERRRE S E L RIE
HHE MZEEREHARRAE —EEEN T
M AHMETEKE ZERNGEABRET
=S

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECL") allowance for all trade
receivables. Accordingly, management grouped trade receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics and ageing profile. The
estimated ECL rates were based on historical credit loss rates for
different groups and adjusted to reflect the current and multiple
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors that are
considered relevant to determine the ability of customers to settle
the receivables in the future.
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Our audit procedures in relation to impairment of trade
receivables mainly included:

BAEF R E ZRFRENETF TR

e Understanding and evaluating the key controls performed by
management over the impairment assessment process, in
particular those over the identification of impaired receivables
and the calculation of provisions according to the lifetime ECL
model;

o TERNMMAEERENRENMGEETEITHERE
wHE R - D H R BRI B RERIE MR R 2 HTR
HEEERRAFEREN L

e Fvaluating management’s assessment of the historical
credit loss rates by sample checking inputs in respect of
the assumptions made, such as historical payment records,
correspondence on any disputes or claims with the customers
and subsequent records;

o FBMBEREMERRNBAZIE - fIIBENK
oEE - M EEFAUNNEFRERBHRALE
Niz@EENTsE AT EEHRTEEEEEN
At

e Understanding the status of each of the material trade
receivables past due as at year end, the Group’'s on-going
business relationships with the relevant customers and past
settlement history of the customers through discussion with
management;

o FREEBEEIT R UTHRNFEAZSEEK
BHRKESERERNEL - EEEERBEHEERHN
FEEBERBERERARBAZTFHBEEMER

e (Checking the computation of the amount of provision and
evaluating the expected future changes in credit risks in
management’s assessment by sample checking the inputs to
the assumptions to external data sources; and

o EBHBRE B IR AR H IR EUER 2K
R ZERESRNAE N RERENGAEN
TRHREERBARES : &

e Performing testing, on a sample basis, of the accuracy of the
trade receivables ageing report.

o RIS AR H ARl R A ERE
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and The Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
errar.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’
report is Lo Kin Kei.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lo Kin Kei
Practising Certificate Number: P06413

Hong Kong, 28th June 2023

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BRI R

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

Revenue Uz 5 410,421 501,269
Cost of sales $HE KA (304,338) (369,501)

Gross profit EH 106,083 131,768
Other income and net gains MW A R TR 6 5,663 2,812

Distribution and selling expenses DIENIHEER (31,519) (35,179)
General and administrative expenses —BRITHEERER (66,670) (69,323)

Operating profit KSR T 13,557
Finance costs R E{p®N 8 (4,327)

Profit before income tax BRPTIS R A& A 9,230 27,436

Income tax expense TSRS 9 (3,961) (6,296)
Profit for the year FREF 7 5,269

(Loss)/profit attributable to: fEfG (E518),& )

Equity holders of the Company KARIEEFEA

Non-controlling interests AR i

(Loss)/earnings per share attributable to FRARRRERFFEA
the equity holders of the Company during FEE A% (E518), & F
the year

— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EAR R EEE B 10

Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial ~ AXEFEEBERAR A M ERERMFENHE o
statements.

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK 75
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Fo oy v WAL A

For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

Profit for the year FNm A

Other comprehensive (expense)/income Ht2E(BI%) WA
Item that may be reclassified subsequently — H & A] B 42 Bz 2 THH

to profit or loss
Currency translation differences: ERHREERE
— Subsidiaries —HEBAF (19,214)
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently E & T & EZ 21872 1B H
to profit or loss
Revaluation gain on property, plant and M - WER&EEH KR
equipment

Other comprehensive (expense)/income for ~ FREMEE (F), WA (EFK
the year, net of tax 1) (18,764)

Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2 TH (Bisz) /W A 458 (13,495)

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FEhREmE(FX), WAL
attributable to:

Equity holders of the Company RARERFAA (11,752)

Non-controlling interests AR i (1,743)

(13,495)

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR BRSNS

Asat31stMarch 2023 R —ZE-=F=HA=+—H

51,811
8,468
137
5,196

1,945

67,557

165,939
38,119

17,992
52
30,434

252,536

320,093

30,232
22,088
1,023
31,000
5,107
44,804
629

134,883

117,653

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment e Y ] 14
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14
Intangible assets | AE 16
Investment properties REYHE 15
Goodwill S 16
Prepayments and deposits BRFIE RS
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 18
Trade receivables FEUE B ERFK 19
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FETFUE « & & R EAM

FEUW R IE
Current income tax recoverable AJUL B BNERAT 1S R
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTHE 20
Total assets EEHAE
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FETE SRR 21
Other payables and accruals Hi BN RIBREAER
Contract liabilities BHEE
Loan from a shareholder BERER 22
Lease liabilities HEAE 14
Bank borrowings RITEE 23
Current income tax liabilities BIHAFTIS T A&
Net current assets RBEETFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABER

185,210

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH

39,316
8,741
138
4,685

2,016

54,896

188,877
57,827

17,023
82
37,220

301,029

355,925

33,331
20,619
3,240
30,000
5929
69,292
284

162,695

138,334

193,230
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

IR SN

Asat31stMarch 2023 R —ZE-=F=HA=+—H

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Other payables H A f& < 5008
Bank borrowings RITEE 23
Deferred tax liabilities REIEAG 24
Lease liabilities HEaE 14
Net assets EEFRE
Capital and reserves attributable to the 2~ FlfEZ A AFE(L

equity holders of the Company RAR G
Share capital &N 25
Reserves G
Non-controlling interests FEERER
Total equity AR

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
by the Board of Directors on 28th June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE

HElE
Chairman

T

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023

172,674

103,527

123,527

172,674

2,669
4,820
1,200
3,847

12,536

188,169

20,000 20,000

117,279

137,279

49,147 50,890

188,169

BREMBBRRENR-_Z=FA=-1+/\H
EESSHENFENE XA TIEEK
REFERE -

YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL

BRE

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

BIE/ERTTBARE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BOMRBER

For the year ended 31st March 2023 BZE — T -_=F=A=+—HILFE

Balance at Tst April 2021 WZZ--FNA-Az&H 20,000 16,706 800 (15,767) 4,989 9,427 105,155 4720 172875
Total comprehensive income for the year £ 2TMA %8 - - - 2087 151 1321 15,449 8049 23,498

Acquisition of non-controlling interestof ~ WEEZRIMBAR 2 IR

subsidiaries B - - - - - (1,32) (1,325) (4416) (5,741)
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-FNBAR - - - - - - - 313) 313
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2% F— R B2 RIFHER

of a subsidiary [ 2awd)T:) - - - - - - - (150) (150)
Dividends of the Company: ARARE
2021 final dividend —Eo-ERERE - - - - - (1,000 (1,000) - (1,000
2022 interim dividend S —FhHRS - - - - - (1,000 (1,000) - (1,000
Balance at 31st March 2022 R-E--F=B=t+-Rz

3 20,000 16,706 800 13,680) 5,140 108,313 17,219 50890 188,169
Representing;: THER -
2022 final dividend “E-ERERE 1,000
Others Eft 107313
108,313

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK 79
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HOMmEER

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

Balance at 15t April 2022 RZZZZENA-Bz&EH 20,000 16,706 (13,680) 5140 108,313 17219 50,890 188,169

Total comprehensive (expensel/income ~ FRZE (FX) /WALE

for the year (11,824) (1,752) (1,743) (13,495)
Dividends of the Company; KRARE
2022 final dividend ZEIERERE (1,000) (1,000) (1,000)
2023 interim dividend ZECZERHRE (1,000) (1,000) (1,000)
Balance at 31st March 2023 R-B-=f=fA=+-Az

o33 20,000 16,706 (25,508) 5,590 105,935 103,527 49,147 172,674

Representing: TR :
2023 final dividend ZEICERERE 1,000
Others Eth 104,935

105,935

Note: Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary MisE - RAREE AN AT D RITE @I 2 EE - EIEE

shares issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium TEE—FA+ N \BETZEATHBRNOE
of subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which 2 WE A RPN _ERAD SR B 2 B E 2 8
took place on 18th April 2001. ZEEE o

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BobehaR

Asat31stMarch 2023 R —ZE-=F=HA=+—H

Cash flows from operating activities REXBEEZHERE
Net cash generated from operations AR EA 2 RS 5 26 48,285 34,713
Overseas income tax paid BAHEINTEFR (3,722) (5,863)
Overseas income tax refunded TGN TR TR 116 52
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREENEH (64) (86)
Net cash generated from operating activities /EEXBELZHLFE 44615 | 28816
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZESRE
Interest received RIS 254
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB Y% - WiE & &G (12,199)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand HE&E¥EE - BE M &G

equipment B3R 273
Purchase of intangible assets WEEFEE (95)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary & — BB A FIATSIE

SRMAFE 30 146

Netcash used in investing activites WA RBPAZHLFE (17,929) [ (11,621)
Cash flows from financing activities METBHEECRERE
Interest paid BRFLE (4,327) (2,642)
Acquisition of non-controlling interest of WisZEEB AR 2

subsidiaries eV R RS - (5,741)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders )& T AR BRI R 2 & & (2,000) (2,000)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest of a 2k T — KB A 7

subsidiary FEPERRAE R 2 IR = (150)
Loan from a shareholder RRE R 1,000 5,000
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEAE (7,795) (7,298)
Repayments of bank borrowings ERRITEER (126,347) (129,197)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITEEMSHIEA 110,103 129,452
Net cash used in financing activities MEEDEA R e FRE (29,366) (12,576)

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GobehaR

Asat31stMarch 2023 R=ZE—_=F=A=

+-8

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

RERREEEY

(M4) /¥

FzRe RREFEY

EEBD2F

i

(2,680)

34,162

(1,048)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year

FRZBERBEEEY

Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents:

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank overdrafts

Re LR eHEDER
DT

RITRFHARE
RITBEX

20 30,434
23 =

37,220
(3,058)

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading and
distribution of electronic components, electrical components and
equipment and computer products and mobile accessories and trading
of cosmetic products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
addresses of its registered office and principal place of business are set
out in the Company's annual report.

The Company's shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of
units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed
in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Amendments to standards adopted by the Group
(a)  The Group has adopted or early adopted the following
amendments to standards that have been issued and
effective for the Group's financial year beginning on or
after 1st April 2022:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework

Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment —
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of
HKAS 37 Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The amendments listed above did not have any significant
impact on the amounts recognized in prior periods and are
not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards and amendments to standards not yet
adopted
(b)  New standards, amendments to existing standards which
have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1st April 2022 and have not been early
adopted:

HKFRS 17 (including  Insurance Contracts'

the October 2020
and February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to Lease Liability in a Sale and
HKFRS 16 Leaseback®

Amendments to Classification of Liabilities as
HKAS 1 Current or Non-current and

related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to Non-current Liabilities with
HKAS 1 Covenants®

Amendments to Disclosure of Accounting Policies’
HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to Definition of Accounting Estimates'
HKAS 8

Amendments to Deferred Tax related to Assets and
HKAS 12 Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January

2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2024
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
New standards and amendments to standards not yet
adopted (continued)
The Group is in the process of assessing the potential impact of
the above new HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in
a position to state whether the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have a significant impact on the Group’s and the
Company's results of operations and financial position.

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

—F=-A=1+—HLHFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a)  Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the business, the equity interests
issued by the Group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement and the fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognizes any non-controlling interest
in the acquired entity on an acquisition date. The
Group recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts
are less than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the difference is
recognized directly in profit or loss as a bargain

purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity's
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts
classified as a financial liability are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement
are recognized in profit or loss.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group.
A change in ownership interest results in an
adjustment between the carrying amounts of the
controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the adjustment
to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognized in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

—F=-A=1+—HLHFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(b)

Changes in ownership interests (continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognized
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
222 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the steering
committee that makes strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars (HK$),
which is the Company's functional and the Group's
presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognized in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, within “finance costs”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a net basis
within “general and administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For
example, translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognized in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

—F=-R=1+—HL=FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

(continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(a)  assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

(b)  income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in

other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognized in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold
or any borrowings forming part of the net investment
are repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on

sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at

the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of
joint control over a joint venture that includes a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of significant
influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in
the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
currency translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognized in profit or
loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions
in the Group’s ownership interest in associates or joint
ventures that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to profit
or loss.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
properties, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the Group.
Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair
values are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other income and net
gains” or “general and administrative expenses”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of
certain lease properties are recognized, net of tax, in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in reserves in
shareholders’ equity. To the extent that the increase reverses a
decrease previously recognized in profit or loss, the increase is
first recognized in profit or loss. Decrease that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognized in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to
profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to
profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost,
net of tax, is reclassified from the property, plant and equipment
revaluation surplus to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

FEGFIBORME 2)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 2.6 W3k ~ WK (&)

Freehold lands are not depreciated and are measured at cost less
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings

Leasehold properties
Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

20 years
2510 60 years
4 t0 10 years
4 t0 10 years
4 10 6 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Certain lease properties are recognized at fair value based
on periodic, but at least triennial, valuations by external
independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation. A revaluation
surplus is credited to other reserves in shareholders’ equity.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
2.7 Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.1.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortized but it is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to
the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or
groups of units are identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes,
being the operating segments.

Licenses

Separately acquired licenses are shown at historical
cost. Licenses acquired in a business combination are
recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. They have
a finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

Amortization methods and periods

The Group amortizes intangible assets with a limited useful
life using the straight-line method over the following
periods:

Licenses 3 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful
life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting
period.

Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through OCI or through profit or loss), and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.9 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(b)

(c)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (the “FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
classifies its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortized cost.

Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other
income and net gains together with foreign exchange
gains and losses. Impairment losses are included in
general and administrative expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
2.9 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(c)

(d)

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in other comprehensive income, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognized in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit loss associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortized cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1 details how
the Group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition
of the receivables. For other receivables, impairment is
measured as either 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit losses, depending on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of
a receivable has occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime expected credit losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method
and excludes borrowing costs. Costs of purchased inventories
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.12 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandize sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade receivables is expected in one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognized initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognized at fair value.
The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to
collect the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
2.14 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.15 Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. Trade and other payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

2.16 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains
rights to receive consideration from the customer and assumes
performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services to
the customer. The combination of those rights and performance
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net liability depending
on the relationship between the remaining rights and the
performance obligations. The contract is an asset and recognized
as contract assets if the measure of the remaining rights
exceeds the measure of the remaining performance obligations.
Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognized as
contract liabilities if the measure of the remaining performance
obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit
or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liahility for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.18 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Financial guarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL,
are subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the
present value of the difference in net cash flows between
the contractual payments under the debt instrument and the
payments that would be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realized or the deferred income tax liahility is
settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B e

For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
plans, the assets of which are generally held in
independently administered funds. The Group's
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognized until the time of leave.
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B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognized as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to become
exercisable. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. It recognizes the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments
are recognized as a liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected
to be settled within 12 months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

FEGFIBORME 2)

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
(continued)
2.22 Provisions

2.22

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management'’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

2.23 Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for
goods supplied, stated net of discounts, returns and value added
taxes. The Group recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of
control to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for goods
or Services.

(a)  Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when control
over such products is transferred, being when the products
are delivered or shipped, the customer has accepted the
products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the
specified location and the risk of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognized when the Group has
received deposits from the customers. The Group records
these as other payables and accruals in advance in
the liabilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. Such contract liability is recognized as
revenue when such goods are delivered to customers.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — =& —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest
method. When a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces
the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired receivables is recognized using the
original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income
are recognized over time based on the actual service
provided to the end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

=F=-A=1+—HLFE

2

FEGFIBORME 2)

2.23 WaiMEwd (&)

(b)

(c)

M BIAT R BEIRA SORRE
R o BEKFEHERE
AEBESREREERESER
WEEEE - AIRES R AR
TARKTERMEEEIR Z 14
‘E‘I—El?éiﬁ\//}lbg ’ ﬁaﬁiﬁﬁa
FERIENBIA - ERE
FE W FRIR 2 Bl S AR R AR
BRI RER -

RIFWA - BERE LAWK
ABERS I RERR - I LA¥R &5 HA
EH A PR B R ARFE
Tt 28R < Ll R E
% REAREFPRKESK
B AaR o

MBS BATIRHE AL E &
/ﬁﬁﬁ s ©

BRAKEERLR - === “B-=FFH

109



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.24 Lease

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease
and non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone
prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Group
is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single lease
component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2 FEEFIBURBIE &)

(continued)
2.24 Lease (continued) 224 ME(#E)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group: RETBSEENE - KEH

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received o  TERJREIBRT - FRERIE
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to MARIESHE=/E
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party AIEEEELARAREE
financing was received BB =& ARELE i

(Ea=nk-

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free s ERARINA BRAFARF]
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by FIEHEENEERR (&
the Company, which does not have recent third-party MW EE=FTRE) ARE
financing, and R ZE - &

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, o  GETEHENELONEE - I
country, currency and security. WEIRR - xR - BB RE

o

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the fie E Bl AR A R LAfSE A S0 1S

individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which B HERF R CRBRANGE

has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the group entities g IHEE) - BEMNRIG MM

use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental B - AR BB AL R

borrowing rate. ERL BRI EEILSEEF X o

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable 7 5 B R R A] BEAR 4R 75 s &

lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included IR SEENFE  mMEMEE

in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to HRFREERBI T ST ARE
lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease BE - EREBEHIFNEHEE

liability is reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. - FRAE H B 58 28 A R %ﬂ;%ﬁ

EERBEEREEEETENT
EVEEEE

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance MEMFRA D R A 2

cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease YEH 2 BC o BAE A8 & HA R

period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on RiBRNKR - BEULSHENE

the remaining balance of the liability for each period. EEREEEY BRI AR — 5 -

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the ERREERKAGTE BN

following: T&IE :

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability o HEBEMVRITESEE

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement e R BHAZS AT
date less any lease incentives received A3 & ROR 2 Y EE T 8

EER
e anyinitial direct costs, and o  (HAUVIBEERAE - &
o restoration costs. . BEBRA -
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)

2.24

2.25

Lease (continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the group revalues its land and buildings
that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the

group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognized on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without
a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment and
small items of office furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
(Note 27). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognized as expense over the lease term on the same
basis as lease income. The respective leased assets are included
in the balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognized as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.26 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized
in the income statement over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.27 Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
2.27 Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

3 Financial Risk Management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. The
Group’s treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks
in close co-operation with the Group's operating units. The Board
provides written principles for overall risk management, as
well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative
financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments,
and investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, South Africa, Malaysia, Singapore and
Taiwan and is exposed to foreign exchange risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (“USD").
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and
net investments in foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the
foreign exchange risk is not significant and the
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign exchange risk exposure
should the need arise.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

—F=-R=1+—HL=FE

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the reporting date to a reasonably possible change
in the USD exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group's profit (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

2023

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD

If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD

If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD

If South African Rand weakens against USD

If South African Rand strengthens against USD
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2022

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD

If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD
If Singapore dollar weakens against USD

If Singapore dollar strengthens against USD

If South African Rand weakens against USD

If South African Rand strengthens against USD
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 WMEBEEER )

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a)  Market risk (continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
Exposure
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the
end of the reporting period, expressed in Hong Kong
dollar, was as follows:

Trade receivables EUESER 98 155 1B

Cashandbankbalences ~~ BERB1TES 1194 6305 5005
Trade payables B85 w4 1290

Bank borrowings Biteat = - 5%

(i) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to significant price risks
during the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(a)

(ifi)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its interest-bearing bank
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group currently does not
have any interest rate hedging policies. However,
management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity
to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings) and the Group's equity.
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets at trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, and cash and bank balances. The carrying
amounts of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, and cash and bank balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
financial assets.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits at banks since they are
substantially deposited at medium or large-sized listed
banks. Management does not expect that there will be
any significant losses from non-performance by these
counterparties. The existing counterparties do not have
default in the past. Therefore, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected credit loss
provision for impairment of all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit loss. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on nature of customer accounts
and shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due.

3 MwEFEER )
3.1 BB (2)

(b)

=EmE
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SRR - B EUGRIA KR
SANBE LIRTEHZ IR
HEEANEE D EE EA
RZENEERE -

AREBBHRIRTTIREF K
HEzEERRY TEX
FRRRBBERAED TR
RS FHRTT - EEE
B TEEERYTFHE
HMEE 2 FAIERERK
BEHF BTN ERRL
% - AUt - EHEE ZRIER
B FAEK o

AEBEEREBUHREE
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Creditrisk (continued)

—F=-R=1+—HL=FE

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31st March 2023
and 2022 was determined as follows for trade receivables:

As at 31st March 2023

Individual assessment

Collective assessment
(based on due dates)
0 to 60 days
61 to 120 days
121 to 180 days
181 to 365 days

(EGIESE

SEBRT
(#3159 8)
ZT£60H
61£120H
1212180H
1812365H

As at 31st March 2022

(b)

35,697

40,027

3 WMERBEEMe)
3.1 WMEEEEE @)

=EmE(E)
BIEZEE N -=4F
r=Z2-——F#=RA=+—H
ZRWE SRNEEREE
FEMT

R-ZBZ=F=ZHA=+—8H

(861) 34,836
2814 (162) 2,652
205 (19) 186
548 (103) 445

(1,908)

38,119

R-_ZTE-__F=A=1+—H

Individual assessment & BIFEH 100% 227 (227) -
Collective assessment ERETTE
(based on due dates) (ZEEE)
0 to 60 days ESEI)= 2% 51,803 (884) 50,919
61 to 120 days 612120H 3% 6,851 (239) 6,612
121 to 180 days 1212180H 9% 169 (15) 154
181 to 365 days 1812365H 68% 443 (301) 142
59,493 (1,666) 57,827
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3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make contractual
payments.

The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31st March
2023 and 2022 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as
follows:

SO % JEL B 4 B 2)
31 HMBEEEEE)
(b) =EEEE)

FEUE 5 8 S 12 A U E

A EREEES T LAY o 8

BIE 7 AIRERE Y 51T E

E(EPER)REARER
ZRER BE AR AT &) KR RE
EH BN -

MN-E-_=ZFR-_T__F
—A=+—BZzREKZESZE
REBREEFYEIERE
ZEERUOT ¢

At 1st April 2022 RZZE__FHmHA—H
Provision s

Reversal 2

Exchange difference EH ZRE

At 31st March 2023 RZZE_=F=A=+—H

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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3 MRS
31 BMEEBEEE)
EERRB(E)

3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) (b)

(c)

At 1st April 2021 R-E-—FA—H 1,622
Provision B 256
Reversal B[l (144)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHE AT (90)
Exchange difference fERZER 22
At 31st March 2022 RZEZZF=R=+—H 1,666

As at 31st March 2023 and 2022, the Group has assessed
that the expected loss rate for other receivables and
deposits was immaterial. Thus, no loss allowance for
other receivables and deposits was recognized.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the
Group's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and borrowing
facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2023, the Group had several bank
borrowings including bank overdrafts with carrying
amounts of approximately HK$49,624,000 (2022:
approximately HK$69,292,000).
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities as at the reporting date, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

A R B A Bl )
3.1 MEEEEEE
(c) FmEEZEREE)
REBMERMEERBBENR
= B HAIRA 4R AL IR FREEET
B RHERET

am St 3
Trate pajables EBHER 03 03 KF)
Other payebles andaccrials ~— EfERFUER
EER 208 U5 75
Loanfrom a sharehalder EEEN 31,000 31,000 31,000
Lease Fitiftes HEaE 521 5408 023 8954
Bank boromings HfEE 626 455% 50880 19624
13473 710 104567
a2 “EoCE
Trade payatles EREAER Rk - - - BRI Rk
Ot payalesandacenals—— EA0EREUAR
EHER 0619 . . - 2619 0619
Loan foma shreholder REER 000 - - - 3000 000
Lease labls HEak 01 6519 370 - - 10229 929
Bark borowings Bikg m 59465 - - - 69465 ki
159904 3700 - - 16364 16253
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

3 Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including loan from a shareholder
and bank borrowings) less cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s strategy remains unchanged and the gearing ratios
at 31st March 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

Total borrowings - EGEE]
Less: Cash at bank and in hand

3 WMERBEEMe)

3.2

o SRITREFRRAEF

Be
Net debt B HE
Total equity iy
Gearing ratio BERELE
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

3 Financial Risk Management (continued)

33

34

Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level
3).

At 31st March 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
financial assets and liahilities that are measured at the above
fair value measurements hierarchy.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between
Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortized cost
—Trade receivables

— Other receivables and deposits

— Cash and bank balances

— B E SRR

3

—Ht RIS
— R LIRTTHER

S0 5 R B 4 Bl )

3.3

34

RBHERATECEREE

Financial liabilities =K
Liabilities at amartized cost BEBEKATEZBE
— Trade payables —EREZER

— Other payables and accruals

— Loan from a shareholder —BERER
— Lease liabilities —-HEaE
— Bank borrowings —iRITEE

—HEEMNRRREER

AP RE
TRIZEGEEFED AR FET]
BRZEMT A - REFRTEWLT ¢

e HRABEXBBHEEER™
B2 HRECREHE) (F—
AR o

o RE—RBEZIHESN - A
B & (AR ERR) sk & (A
HERITE)BEMSZE
EXRBRABRGE R -

o WIHMKIEBEMBMSEIE
ZEESABERABAE
BEMBRAE) (F=R) -

RZEBE-_=—FR-_FT-_"F=H
=+—H  XNEEBEWELAZE
MAFEFERFFTEZERE
ENAE-

FAR B F_RRE=MR
ZEW B ERSREEES -

HER S 2 &mTH
RBEBEH ST AEERZ
EREEWT -

38,119
4,275
30,434

30,232
24,751
31,000

8,954
49,624

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and
Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in customer
demand and competitor actions. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of receivables

The provision of impairment for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
Group uses significant judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumption and inputs used are disclosed in
Note 3.1(b).

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for income taxes. There are certain transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue recognized during the year is as follows:

Revenue Was
Sales of electronic components, electrical HEBFLH - BX

components and equipment =3

Sales of computer products, mobile accessories $H% T AN E M FHEEC (A K

ARTSUWA
SHE(CHm

and service income
Sales of cosmetic products

eV Tigiygi

FARERZ WS T

272,644 360,776

80,129 77,659
57,648 62,834

410,421 501,269

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The Executive
Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in order to assess
the performance and allocate resources; they have also determined the
operating segments based on these reports. The Executive Directors
have further considered the business from product perspective and
have assessed the performance of three main business segments: (i)
Electronic and Electrical Trading Business — Distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment; (ii) Computer
Business — Retail sales of computer products, mobile accessories,
distribution of computer products and provision of IT outsourcing and
solution services; and (iii) Cosmetic and Online Retail Business —
Trading and retail and distribution of cosmetic products through retail
shops and online channels.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the operating
segments based on segment results before corporate expenses and
finance costs.

AARIEBEARFTNTER([WTE
EATBEERRE - TESEE
BIASEE s NSRS » UFHERIR LS
BRER  FENDRBEZSREETK
BOI - PITEENERAESE—F=
BEBRFH= 1l$£%ﬁ%"*|32%%
B (BT BRIGBEEELE - 2H
5 %751# BRI RESS  ()E “‘%
B BNERMTFREGTEER -

SHEE RS E MR \ﬁuﬂﬂ&&mﬁl\@&
R RRY - Rlifbiam kB EE
EXK-ERTEEALBLRESR
B TERDH S -

MITEZEREBENGEERMA LEEK
KA DB FRAEHEREN#B 2 FAR -
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5  Wi#i S 53 W& B (2)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2023 are as follows: HE-_Z-=F=A=+—HIFEZ
DEPEAEMT

Revenue from external customers ~ RENREF 2z 272,644 410,421

Time of revenue recognition W R ]

~ Ata pointin time —RE—HE 212,644 400,719
— Over time - R—BREEA - 9,02

212,644 410,421

Segment results DEEE 11,244 13,559
Unallocated expenses AOERAX 2)
Finance costs BEKA (4,321)
Profit before income tax BRETSH AR R 9230
Income tax expense (Note 9) TR (M9) (3,961)
Profit for the year FRER 5,269

Other segment items included in the B NraBake
consolidated statement of profitor loss 7 ESIEE AT :
are as follows:

Amortization of intangible assets B AESH
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ BENSETE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE
Loss on disposal of property, plant HENE - BER

and equipment HEEE
Provision for impairment of trade FEWE ZERFRERE
receivables
Reversal of provision for impairment FEWE ZEFRE
of trade receivables BiERE
(Reversal)/provision for impairment B ERE(EE),/
of slow-moving inventories B
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5  Wiai Ko iR &E Bl (2)
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2022 are as follows: HE-_Z-_F=A=+—HIEFEZ
DEEEMNT -

Revenue from external customers REMEF 2 hH 360,776 77,659 62,834 501,269
Time of revenue recognition W TR
~ Atapoint intie —HNE - %0776 75346 62,834 498956
~ Over time —R—BREER - 2313 - 2313
360,776 77,659 62,834 501,269
Segment results DEEE 28,328 3 1,004 30,105
Unallocated expenses RAEFAX (27)
Finance costs BERA (2,642)
Profit before income tax B ER AT RF 2743
Income tax expense (Note 9) B ER)) (6,29)
Profit for the year FERER 21,140
Other segment items included in the ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁlﬂ\ BABRELZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss PHEEWT :

are as follows:

Amartization of intangible assets B EESH 53 - - 53
Depreciation of property, plant and 0% BERRERE

equipment 1435 72 361 1,868
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRELENE 2470 3411 1586 7467
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE  BEREEZ

equipment Wiz (24) - - [24)
Provision for impairment of trade receivables  FEURE 5 8R ZURE B 254 2 - 256
Reversal of provision for impaiment of trade  FEUXE 58k FUR B AL [l

receivables (143) (1) - (144)
Provision/{reversal) for impaiment of slow- & 577 SR {ERE /(B[

moving inventories 2232 9) 7 2230
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5  Wai K5 R &E Bl (2)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, NEEEFEREME - KERE
right-of-use assets, investment properties, intangible assets, goodwill, TREEE  REVME BREE B
inventories, trade and other receivables and cash and bank balances. 2 FE - EREZERFIREMERK
Unallocated assets comprise current income tax recoverable and certain HARIBR S MIRITHES - ROBEEER
other receivables. FEATU B BN EART 1S 156 B o T EAth B LK
I8 o
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated liabilities SHEERELERE - KD HEAER
comprise items such as other payables and accruals. FEHAMENFIBERESBAZIER -
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property, plant ANEBEIERBEEBIEAEYE BEX
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets. xR FRAREEREREE
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2023 and additions R-_ZE_=F=R=t+—BzZniE&E
to non-current assets for the year then ended are as follows: FMEEBEUAREBEZALFEZIERBE
EANBIAT :

Assets BE 217,461 22,602 17,862 2,168 320,093

Liabilities EBE 122,908 10,567 9,853 4,086 147,19

Additions to non-current assets REFRDEE 21,675 2,766 1,803 26,280
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5 Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5  Wiai Ko iR &E Bl (2)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2022 and additions MN-E-_—F=ZA=+—BAZHHEE
to non-current assets for the year then ended are as follows: FMEBBEUREBEZALFEZIERBE
ERBIAT :

Assets BE 305,362 21514 20,207 2842 365,925

Liabilities Ak 140478 12515 10674 4,089 167,756

Additions to non-current assets REFNPEE 16,694 3.0% 1732 - 21462
The Group's revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia AEEZWEETEREEE - TAM
Pacific, South Africa and Europe. & - FIERBUM o

Revenue &=
Hong Kong (country of domicile) BAGEMEEREK) 187121 222,59
Asia Pacific EEy el 81,436 121,784
South Africa FA3E 132,145 143,153
Europe (FO 8,950 12,786
Other countries HAnBEZ 769 951
410,421 501,269
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is WERIRE PR 248 o
located.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

5 Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

Wesk Ko SR E R 2)

116,628 165,413
47,399 31,199
129,080 130,715
24,818 25,756

Total assets EEHAE
Hong Kong B

Asia Pacific 2o Kb [&
South Africa EES

Europe B
Unallocated assets ROBEEE

317,925 353,083
2,168 2,842

320,093 355,925

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

Additions to non-current assets NEIRBEE
Hong Kong &5

Asia Pacific Eyridt

South Africa [FEE S

Europe B

BEREREEMEDER -

26,284

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the assets
are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments located
in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific, South Africa and Europe are approximately
HK$4,220,000, HK$12,060,000, HK$36,910,000 and HK$12,422,000
respectively (2022: approximately HK$5,119,000, HK$10,312,000,
HK$24,284,000 and HK$13,165,000 respectively).
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5
Information about major customers

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for the
years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022.

(a) Contract liabilities
The Group has recognized the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

Contract liabilities related to sales of
electronic components, electrical
components and equipment

Contract liabilities related to sales of
computer products, mobile accessories
and service income

Contract liabilities related to sales of
cosmetic products

A&

A&

Wets B o i E R 2

B EEE PR E R

Bz =K _ZE-__%=AH4
= +t—HIEMEFE  BEXPAHRE

HBEE10%SA F o
(a) BHERE

HEEE T - BRI
RigERARZENAaRE

BIHEEMER - FREH
KRBEWABBZEH

HEEamBEREZAH

Contract liabilities represent receipts in advance from customers
for goods that have not yet been delivered to the customers.
As at 31st March 2023 and 2022, the contract liabilities mainly
included the receipts in advance from individual customers for
sales of electronic components, automation parts and equipment,
sales of computer products and mobile accessories and sales of
cosmetic products after the end of respective reporting period.

The decrease in contract liabilities in the current year has mainly
due to the decrease in advance payments from customers.

(b)  Revenue recognized in relation to contract liabilities
Revenue of approximately HK$3,110,000 (2022: approximately
HK$899,000) is recognized in relation to contract liabilities in the
year ended 31st March 2023 (2022: approximately HK$1,294,000)
related to carried forward contract liabilities at the beginning of
the reporting period.

All of the Group’s remaining performance obligations for
contracts with customers are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

(b)

AEECHER TNIEEFENA
FzRA :

AHBEERMARNTFRREZ
ERTEREFZRIE - RZZT
—FEN B _FZRA=+—
H AHBEZTEEEREHE
REHBAERERBEEE T T

Mg 0>

- BB RfEes  HEE
P E am M F M BC 1 A S SH B iR
mIBYOEL B P 2 F0R o

AEEEHAERD  TEARN
KEEPOENFORAFIE

BEHNEERZZ Wix
pEHE—_ZEZ-_=#£=A=+—08H
EFEZANBRE(ZEZF -
491,294,000 7T ) OF R R & H
VEE 2 5B E) R W=D
A3,1100008 T (Z2E=2=2F : &
899,000 ¢ ) °

AEBERFIIVANME R LN
HRITEAEEZHRG R —F=X
AT - mEBWERELERIF15
AT URT  WENBENE T%F
RBEXHEHZ X HEE
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

6 Other Income and Net Gains

Management fee received from third parties ~ DWRE=H 2 BB E

Commission income e A

Interest income from bank deposits RITFERFEHA

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — AT B A R 2 WS

Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEMZE - WE k& W
equipment

Gross rental income from investment properties &Y% & WA LEEE

Government grants (note) BT B (B aE)

Other income HA WA

6

F At BN B W 4k

Note:  Under Anti-Epidemic Fund launched by the Hong Kong SAR government, wage
subsidies of approximately HK$2,777,000 related to the Employment Support
Scheme were recognized during the year ended 31st March 2023. SME Export
Marketing Fund of approximately HK$46,000 were granted to a subsidiary in Hong
Kong during the year ended 31st March 2023.

Government subsidies of approximately HK§177,000 (2022: approximately
HK$47,000) granted to a subsidiary in other jurisdiction were recognized during
the year ended 31st March 2023.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

7 Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Costs of inventories expensed

Employee benefit expense (Note 12)

Amortization of intangible assets

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(included in general and administrative
expenses)

Reversal of provision for impairment of
trade receivables (included in general and
administrative expenses)

(Reversal)/provision for impairment of slow-
moving inventories (included in cost of sales)

Expenses related to short-term leases

Auditors’ remuneration

Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Net foreign exchange gain (included in general
and administrative expenses)

7 NG
EREFRMGRGIA) THIEH :

FERARAR 295,705 363,154
e EmMFA (FiiE12) 58,906 60,223
BB 51 53
FREEENE 7,782 7,467
M - BENRRIETE 1,460 1,868
FEUNE 5 IR FORE R (B 5T

A—RETHEERER)

256

FEU ' 5 BRSO B B (R F B

(BEFA—RRITHER

&) (144)
T ERE(RE ), iR

(BFFASHERA) 2,230
AR SRR 7.824
ZEET NS 1,120

HEME - BERREEE
(Mzk)

B 5 W s BB (B At A— R &%
TREEER)

(24)

(5.669)

8 Finance Costs

Interest expense on bank borrowings
Interest expense on lease liabilities

8 REE A

RITEEZNESHAX
HEBEZHEMAX

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

9 Income Tax Expense 9
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2022:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or derived
from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

B 45 Bt BH 52
AEERBFARBBELEHNRED
B A R R FIR165% (===
F 1 165%) R ERBEREBNEH - I
RENGTERFUEFA NS B EE
B BERERZHEFTEGINGN 25
IE o

Current income tax BNEBFT1S R
— Hong Kong Profits Tax -EBBENEM
— Overseas taxation —BINHIE
— Over-provision in prior years - R
Deferred tax (credit)/expense EEFEGER) X
— Overseas taxation —BINRIR
Income tax expense Frig iz
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

9 Income Tax Expense (continued)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate as follows:

BR PT1S Bt Al 7

Profit before income tax

Pt e P 3 ()

AR [ PS5 B P2 B ER A &
BRHEBBE A E G 2 B HBET
R #EmT

Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax

BB ENEHREE65%(=

rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) — 4 16. 5%)u‘|'/§Z$RIﬁE\ 4,527
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries N \ﬁﬂl%%gzwg AR

operating in other countries TR & 2,410
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized MAERZWB AR RIEERE 448
Utilization of previously unrecognized EFAL AT M AR ER 2 TIAEE

tax losses (1,172)
Over-provision in prior years AT FE R (9)
Others HAth 92
Income tax expense Fr8 i

As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda, it is
exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035.

As at 31st March 2023, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$93,377,000 (2022: approximately HK$84,939,000)
available for offset against future profits (subject to the approval of the
relevant tax authorities). Included in unrecognized tax losses are losses
of approximately HK$91,195,000 (2022: approximately HK$84,939,000)
may be carried forward indefinitely in Hong Kong and approximately
HK$2,182,000 will expire within 5 years under other jurisdiction. No
deferred tax asset had been recognized in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

HRAA R AN BREZ ML 2 B
RRAF]  RERREMNEREHAEE

RZIE-_=F=A=+—H &~&EE
ZAEARIBEEL 593,377,000 7T
(ZT -4 : 4984,939,000087T) * BE
HiEEEHEER & (EFEH
TRISHBARLER F AIEE) - KRR
THE B e IEEE4991,195,0008 T (==
T T4 4984,939,00058 7T ) 0 REB A
$ERR BRAEEE [ #92,182,00078 ST A E AL
AVEEEBNAFREIE] - WER Filt
HEEEERELERBEE ' REAR
RETEORI R 2 s F 2RR o

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 Bl ZE —E - =F = 7

10 (Loss)/Earnings Per Share

11

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31st March
2023 is based on the Group’s loss attributable to equity holders of
the Company of approximately HK$378,000 and the calculation of
basic earnings per share for the year ended 31st March 2022 is based
on the Group's profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of approximately HK$13,211,000. The calculation was based on the
weighted average number of 200,000,000 (2022: 200,000,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share is equal to the basic (loss)/
earnings per share as the Company has no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31st March 2023 and 2022.

Dividends

Interim dividend paid of HK cents 0.5 2k EAAR B AR 3 AR 0. 57 1L
(2022: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share (ZZE==F:0 5/%1IJJ)
Proposed final dividend of HK cents 0.5 R AR B IR B AR 3 AR 0,578 1L

(2022: HK cents 0.5) per ordinary share

=t+—HIFE

(ZZF=—%F : 058()

10 % OEE) B

HE-Z-=F=-A=+—HILEFEZ
BRERNEB RN ARESEE AL
G AR B E B #378,000/8 Tt E - ME
E-E-__HF=-A=+—RIEE2
§%§$§WBE$QTF*%EA
FE(R AN S 5 F)4913,211,00078 T et &
ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂgﬁﬁmaﬁﬁgﬁﬁz
HN#E 7 15 £7200,000,0000% ( — T = — 4 :
200,000,000 ) °

HRARBIRBE-Z-_=ZFNI_F
=A==t HIWMEFELEE
MABEEEYEZCDBITEAR &
FhEE(BR) BN RERER(E
18),/BHFER

11 kB

At a meeting held on 29th June 2022, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31st March 2022.

At a meeting held on 28th June 2023, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.5 per ordinary share in respect
of the year ended 31st March 2023. This proposed final dividend is not
reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

12 Employee Benefit Expense

12 1@ B A B 52

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

& TEREMER
BIRE KA — R HEE

Total employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration)

RBENF R
(BRESME)

58,906

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Except for voluntary
contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF Scheme is
available to reduce the contribution payable in future years. The
employer's and employees’ contribution are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 (2022: HK$30,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 95% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 13% and 11%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the
Group has no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

(a)

Bk & — e gk ET 3
AEBECEAHEBEAREL LN
BHEATESEE ([RESET
2l]) - mEEFEI TR BIE
ANEBEZ TEMERGTE - RiEA
Bestd AEBERHEEBER
BizEBWA(EE RaFIEAE
S ENER) 25%F A Mt &l
HER o B AR - BTES
FTEIFR A A YRR D R REEF
FERTHERR 2R W FR - B E R
B#H & AWA LR A30,000%
TT(=ZF = =4 :30,00057T) °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd.
(AEBEHEARWEZ ZHTBE AR
AEREFKATEELHESR
HEEB A NEEFE([AESE
g2ll) o RERFEITBABRALR
BN ER 2 EREHETE - B
NEeFE EEXREEAED A
ZEBWA(ERBR - NL—FE
BRBE®RER)Z13%E1N%E A
MZ T B o BREEFRASN - K
SEUTNERERZTRAKES K
RIKEEFFAELE—FSHE -
EHEBNKEEEBERRKES
SRR E o

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH

139



140

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B3 S e A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

12 Employee Benefit Expense (continued)

(a)

Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme
at 17% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as
defined under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual pension payments or
post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. Contributions
are based on certain percentage of the applicable salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and have no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits
beyond the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the
retired employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employee’s monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group's contributions are expensed as incurred.

The Group has arranged for its South African employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes. The Schemes is a
defined contribution plan managed by an independent trustee.
Under the schemes, each of the group and its employees make
monthly contributions to the schemes ranging between 5% to
7.5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

For the year ended 31st March 2023, there were no forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave
the retirement scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions)
be used to reduce the existing level of contributions.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #F=H &K FEITHABZME

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the year HE_T-=F=-A=+—HILFE -
ended 31st March 2023 is set out below: BEEERTETRABZHEHTIM
T

Executive directors BiTER

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure AR EELT(EE)
(chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man i, Beryl BEET L
(deputy chairman and chief (BIFERITEAEH)
executive officer)

Mr. Hung Ying Fung Mg fs

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix 15 EI# %4

Independent non-executive  BIFHITES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman (Note ) Charles E. Chapman’t &
(PfizEa)
Mr. Ip FuWa Benthony (Note b) ~ ZE =555 4 (P Eb)
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHEL
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric BKERE
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #H LK FTEITHABZM 4

(continued) (#&)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the year HEZ-_F=A=1+—HIFE -

ended 31st March 2022 i set out below: BEERTI2THRABEZBH 2T
T

Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure ARlEB LT (FE)

(chairman) - - - -
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BRER T (BLEFT

(deputy chairman and chief HiEZ)

executive officer) - - - -
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HrEEfE - - - -

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix  #5EIBR T4 - - - -

Independent non-executive ~ BIFHITEES

directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman3t 4
(Note a) (GET) 80 - - 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFEL 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HKEAE 80 - - 80
280 - - 280
Notes: PiaE
(a)  Mr. Charles E. Chapman has resigned as an independent non-executive director {a)  Charles E. Chapman’t 4 B BB IEMITE
with effect from 31st August 2022. E - BZE_FN\A=T—HREK-
(b)  Mr. Ip Fu Wa Benthony has been appointed as independent non-executive director b)) EEELLECEZTRBIIFNTES -
with effect from 31st August 2022. BT FNA=F+—RHABER-
During the year ended 31st March 2023, four directors (2022; four) of REBEE_T-_=F=-"A=+—H1I%F
the Group waived emoluments in an aggregate amount of approximately B AEBENEES(ZT__F: @
HK$600,000 (2022: approximately HK$600,000). No incentive payment %) EK%@H & A& £ #49600,0005 70 ( —
for joining the Group or compensation for loss of office was paid or — T4 : #9600,000757T) c FIA - *WE
payable to any director during the year (2022: Nil). EH_JZJEH THEMAESZ RE)SHE -
TEREINAZ S B Iy 2 BB sl Bl B 4 (8
(ZTZ=F - |) -
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

13 Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments 13 #FH KT EHITBABZM &

(continued) (#&)

Five highest paid individuals FIR - 1-F JNSR

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group FA - AEEREHERFALTERILE
for the year include no (2022: Nil) executive director whose emoluments (ZZ2-=F | TES - BEZM
are set out above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the SHENEX - #HRTRAR(ZE=Z
remaining five (2022: five) highest paid employees who are neither a RA)BEARRBESMIEEEITHA
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: BrERFEEZFAEFMFBET :

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREMEYET
in kind
Employer's contributions to defined ERRMSGTEIZ EEHK

contribution scheme

The emoluments of each of these highest paid individuals whose FMNTUTEE &aHFATZHE
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: BRI

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,00078 7T
During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual as FA - WER AT AMESERR
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for SIEZF AR DA B 2 £2E) 3k
loss of office (2022: Nil). EREBEE( T _—F &) -
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 W3 ~ B K DA &
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (a) 3k -~ W Bkt

Vearended 1stMarch 2022 EHZ-B-—f

ZAST-HLEFE
Opening net book amount FNRETE 8,258 18,464 617 890 878 29,107
Exchange differences R 545 (596 10 1 13) 33)
Additions NE 10,532 - 419 509 739 12199
Surplus on revaluation BREHR - 169 - - - 169
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNBAR - - - 9) - 9
Disposals L& - - (14) (18) (217) (249)
Depreciation & - (509) (257) (709) (393) (1,868
Closing net book amount EREREE 19335 17528 715 674 1,004 39316
At 31st March 2022 R-B-—E

ZA=t-H
Cost or valuation PENEE 1933 18670 20781 18521 3675 80,982
Accumulated depreciation Z3HE - (1,142) (20,006) (17.847) (2671) (41,666)
Net book amount EmFE 19335 17528 715 674 1,004 39316

Yearended 31stMarch 203 #HZ-Z-=%

ZA=t-HLEFE
Opening net book amount ENRETE 19,335 17528 39,316
Exchange differences ERES (4,156) (144) (4572)
Additions NE 16,856 - 18,007
Surplus on revaluation EfR% 521 521
Disposals i - (1)
Depreciation ik (476) (1,460)
Closing net book amount FREmTE 17435 51811
At 31t March 2023 RZBZ=%

=B=1-H
Cost or valuation PENER 18920 20,949 18632 3632 94,168
Accumulated depreciation ZHNE (1,485 (20,216) (17,814) (2.842) (42,357)
Net book amount RHFE 32,035 17,435 £ 818 790 51,811
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 3 ~ BB &k D R #H &

(continued) (%)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) (a)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2023 and
2022 of the above assets is as follows:

2023

At cost ( 32,035 12,180
At valuation & - 5,255

32,035 17435

2022

Wk ~ WE Kkt (&)
FEER_ZE_=FK_ZF
TTF=ZA=F—HZEARESR
HESHFIAT

—E-=F

46,556
5,255

51,811

At cost WAE 19,335 13928 20,781 18,521 3675 76,240
At valuation HE - 4742 - - - 478
19,335 18,670 20,781 18521 3675 80,98

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2023, had the leasehold properties at
revaluation model of the Group been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, the carrying values would
have been approximately HK$2,341,000 (2022: approximately
HK$2,346,000).

HEMERLNBBFEINL IR EY
HERE -

RZE-_=F=A=1+—8 ¥
NEBEREHERN 2 HEWETD
BEL AR I ITENRR - 8
BREE %) 52,341,00058 T (- =
— T4 492,346,000/ 7T ) ©
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases

(continued)

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
At 31st March 2023, leasehold properties and freehold lands and
buildings with net book amount of approximately HK$20,857,000
(2022: approximately HK$13,732,000) have been pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary
amounting to approximately HK$14,543,000 (2022: approximately
HK$8,615,000).

The fair values of the Group's leasehold properties located in
Singapore at 31st March 2023 and 2022 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Norton Appraisals Limited
and SRE Global Pte Ltd respectively, which are independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuations were arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties.

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

(i) Valuation processes
The Group obtains independent valuations for its
leasehold properties at least annually. In the current
year, the valuations are performed by an independent
firm of professional valuer. At the end of each reporting
period, the directors update their assessment of the fair
value of each leasehold property, taking into account the
most recent independent valuations. The directors review
the valuations performed by an independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the directors and
valuer at least annually, in line with the Group's annual
report date.

At each financial year end the directors:
(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

(i) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements
when compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii)  Hold discussions with the independent valuer.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases

(continued)
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
Valuation basis (continued)

(ii)

Valuation techniques

The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group
held for own use as at 31st March 2023 and 2022 are
classified as Level 2 valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is
determined using market comparison approach by
reference to recent sales price and rental of comparable
properties on a price per square feet basis using market
data which is publicly available.

(b) Leases
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(i)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement
of financial position

EREEE

Right-of-use assets
Retail stores, office premises and

TEER  BATWER

14 P3E ~ Wibs Bk il DA & L

(&)

(a) W3 ~ Wb Kt (&)
HEEE(E)
(i) 1EEEM

(b) ME

RZEZ=FR-_T-_—F
—A=+—H8 AEBEEHE
BRZEEME AT EE
DI RE _RAEE -

BRMEEMRZ A FETE
AMISLEVEETE - HK2
R ARRE 2 T5E R
A B ERRE TR
EBREAETE ZOIHEEBK

B -

AHEREAREERARAZ
HEZER -

(i)

warehouses =)
Lease Liabilities HEEE
Current BNER
Non-current JEENEA

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31st March 2023 were approximately HK$8,201,000 (2022:
approximately HK$9,168,000).

RGEMBRAXRERZE
#

REBEE_ZEZT_=F=A
=t+—BIEFE  FHEE
EZNE 458,201,000/ 7T
(ZZE =4 : 499,168,000/
JT) °

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

14

Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases 14 #3¥ - BB &t R &

(continued) (#&)
(b) Leases (continued) (b) HMEE)
(i)  Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement (ii) RESBEEEAERZLH
of profit or loss
The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the FeBmREY Ty EEE
following amounts relating to leases: B &%

Depreciation charge of right-of-use ~ {FREEENEMRX
assets

Interest expense (included in finance  F BRI (DETARE

costs) A
Expenses relating to short-term HRHHERE A
leases (included in general and (BFF A—MRITE
administrative expenses) EEER)
Expenses relating to variable lease Bt ATAE B ER A&
payments not included in lease MENREBNRX
liabilities (included in general and (BETA—MRITIER
administrative expenses) ERER)
Note: The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31st March M - REBEE-T=Z=%=A
2023 was approximately HK$14,881,000 (2022: approximately =t+—HLtFE HEZ
HK$15,824,000). IR & AR R 49 7314,881,000

BLT(ZZTEZZF 4
15,824,000/ 7T ) ©
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

14 Property, Plant and Equipment and Leases
(continued)
(b) Leases (continued)
(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for
The Group leases retail stores, office premises and
warehouses. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

(iv) Variable lease payments
Leases of the Group do not contain variable payment
terms that are linked to an index or a rate.

(v)  Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. These
are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the Group's operations. The
majority of extension and termination options held are
exercisable only by the Group and not by the respective
lessor.

(vi) Residual value guarantees
The Group did not provide residual value guarantees in
relation to leases during the year ended 31st March 2023
(2022: Nil).

14 W3 -~ Blm kst U R E

(%)

(b) ME(E)
(i) AEFHEZEREHHE

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

BZAEHE
AEBEHEHETEEM
WMAEMERER - MO~
RREE SHNEIF -

HE R TR B B
EH - BETEIE’RTRMN
AR B M6 BR T A AR
B2HEBED 2 ERER
S - TS 1755 I e DN LR
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BB e
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o
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZ —E - =F=A=+—HI-FE

15 #&EW*E

15 Investment Properties

FRBEE-—HAFE
RO A— B2 F ke

Non-current asset — at fair value
Opening balance at 1st April

Exchange differences ME . EHR
Fair value gain N ERE

Closing balance at 31st March =+—H 2 FREEH

Gross rental income from investment properties 3% & ¥ %50 & Ut A 4258

150

Less: Direct operating expenses from
investment properties that generated
rental income

B EERSWAZEEDE
ZHEEE

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st March 2023
and 2022 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out by
Norton Appraisals Limited and SRE Global Pte Ltd respectively, which
are independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the
Group. The valuations were arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties. The valuations were arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.

At 31st March 2023, investment properties with aggregate amount
of approximately HK$5,196,000 (2022: approximately HK$4,685,000)
have been pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted by a
bank to a subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$4,224,000 (2022:
approximately HK$4,187,000).

The fair value change is included in “general and administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

15 Investment Properties (continued)
Valuation basis

(a)

(b)

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its investment
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations
are performed by an independent firm of professional valuer.
At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their
assessment of the fair value of each investment property,
taking into account the most recent independent valuations. The
directors review the valuations performed by an independent
valuer for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the directors and valuer
at least annually, in line with the Group’s annual report date.

As at 31st March 2023 and 2022, the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(i) Assess investment properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(i) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

Valuation techniques

The fair value of the investment properties of the Group held to
earn rentals as at 31st March 2023 and 2022 are classified as
Level 2 valuations.

The fair value of investment properties is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to recent sales price
and rental of comparable properties on a price per square feet
basis using market data which is publicly available.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book
values are analyzed as follows:

Leases of 60 years: FHEBOEF -

— Properties held outside Hong Kong

—F=-A=1+—HLHFE

15 #&EW¥E=)

il {2 e
(a) 1EEES
AEERIBFE-RPEREY

(b)

—ERBRINGAZYME

BRAEEERAR - === /=

XSRBIMLE -RAFE

BRAERBLERGEEMTE
T REERENELEER - &
FERMREFHERRENER
FEZFHE - EPEFT RN
BIUHE - EFEMELEERD
B 2 B E - AR EL B8
HeERRAEBMRIEF—)
e AEBEFHRARTmAEER
Fr M AR

R-E-_=FR-_FT-_—F=H
=+—RB #Fe:

) ZEBILEERESTOME
ERBARE

i) BEEBEFEZEERS
TELLE - FHAREBEME 2 f
B2 &

(i) BB HEENEITRR

1 EF M
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=t+—H AEEFERDAS
ZIREMEZ N EESERSE
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

15 Investment Properties (continued) 15 #EWEE)
Valuation basis (continued) T ke (2
(c) Fairvalue hierarchy (c) AR FEZR

The following tables present the investment properties of the
Group carried at fair value by valuation method as at 31st March
2023 and 2022:

2023 it g2
Recurring fair value TEMNATEE
measurements
— Properties held outside —EBBRINFAEZ
Hong Kong ES
2022 ZECCF
Recurring fair value KEENAFERTE
measurements
— Properties held outside —EBEAEIMNFEZ
Hong Kong VIES -

TEREIRZZFEZ=ZFR=F
TR ZAZ+—HERMBERE
gz AEBIEAFEIERZE
B

4,685 - 4,685

The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

(d) Leasing arrangement (d)
The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases run for a period
of 2 years. None of the leases include variable lease payment.
For minimum lease payment receivables on leases of investment
properties are disclosed in Note 27.
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

16 7 M LAt S ¥

16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Year ended 31st March 2022 BE-—E-——F
=ZA=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHERMEFE - 92 92
Exchange differences M H Z5E - 4 4
Additions NE - 95 95
Amortization charge BiER - (53) (53)
Closing net book amount FRERESE - 138 138
At 31st March 2022 7 S - =
=A=+—H
Cost KANE 212 273 485
Accumulated amortization and EFTEEEORE
impairment (212) (135) (347)
Net book amount BREFE - 138 138
Year ended 31st March 2023 BE-E—=F
=ZA=t+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHRREFE
Exchange differences M EHE
Additions INE
Amortization charge BiER X
Closing net book amount FARERESE
At 31st March 2023 N-ZEE—=
=A=+—H
Cost RAME
Accumulated amortization and EFTEEERORE
impairment
Net book amount EREVFE

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 HiZE — T - =F=A=+—HIFE

16 Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to an individual CGU in the trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components and equipment by Swan Electrical
(Pty) Limited (“Swan”).

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating unit (“CGU")
identified according to country of operation and operating segment as
follows:

Electronic Trading Business — South Africa

16

B N H A TE & B ()
BTETREIR HECE ER
Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited ([ Swan |) B &
MOWEEFIY ERUHERESET
ZENIBEEABN o

BENEEAREIZEERRLELD
EmMEE 2 RS EEEM - FEWT
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 & 2= — = —

17 Principal Subsidiaries
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st March 2023 and 2022, all
of which are held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI)
Limited which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

APlus 2 Computer Limited

REARRARAA)

APower Holdings Limited

BEREEARAT)

Mantech Electronics (Proprietary)

Limited

MBM Properties (Proprietary)
Limited

Mabicon (BVI) Limited

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&k ARAT
Hong Kong,
limited liability company
B8 BRAT
Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company
BIELRE - ARAR
Republic of South Africa,
limited liability company
MIEHANE - ARAT
British Virgin Islands,

limited liability company

RRRLES ARAW

ZFZA=t—HLFE

17 FEME AT
RZEZ=FRZT__F=H=+—
B FEWBRAREHRARRBER
75 (‘HEMobicon (BVI) LimitedBR 4 - B fR 7R
RAEEFA) T :

Trading and distribution of computer
products and mobile accessories in
Hong Kong

RERETERERRTREN

EEENH

Trading and distribution of computer
products, cosmetic products and
mabile accessories in Hong Kong

REBETERER  (tHmk
FREHEERDH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa

REFETEFHN  ERTH
REREEENH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa

REEETEF Il BRARH
RESEEEA

Investment holding in Hong Kong

REBETRARR

Ordinary HK$1,000 100% 100%
ERMR1000ET

Ordinary HK$500,000 80% 80%
L0 0007

Ordinary ZAR 100 61% 61%
ERBI0ERE

Ordinary ZAR 100 61% 61%
ERRI00E R

Ordinary USD10,000 100% 100%
EBRI0000%T

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Mabicon (Taiwan) Limited

ZERARNERAA

Mobicon Electronic Trading

(Shenzhen) Limited (Note (i)

BREETEA(RINER

ol ()

Mobicon Holdings Limited

Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited

Mobicon-Remote Electronic
Pte Ltd.

Mabicon-Remote Electronic
Sdn. Bhd.

Republic of China,
limited liability company

PERE - ARAA

PRC, wholly-owned
foreign enterprise

TE - SEEELR

Hong Kong,
limited liability company

&% ARAA
British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company

RBRLES ARAE

Republic of Singapore,
limited liability company

MIARE - BRAF
Malaysia,
limited liability company

BRES - ARAA

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023

—F=-R=1+—HL=FE

17 FEWB AW (2

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Taiwan

REBEMETTH  ERTH
RESEEEA

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in the PRC

RPEETE TN ERTH

RESEEANH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Hong Kong

REREAEHN  ERLH
REREEENH

Investment holding in Hong Kong

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Singapore

REIRENET LN ERT
RREEEERNH

Trading and distribution of electronic
components, electrical components
and equipment in Malaysia

RERBEENEF LY BR
THRESEERNH

Ordinary New Taiwan dollar
5,000,000

LiBMRs 000000872
Registered capital
HK§2,000,000

AT EA2,000000% 7T

Ordinary HK$10

LRRIET

Ordinary USD1,000
AR 000%TT

Ordinary Singaporean
doflar 300,000

LIR30 0087 DT
Ordinary Malaysian
Ringgit 1,000,000

£ R1,000,000
ERADMES

100%

100%

100%

61%

100%

95%

100%

100%

100%

61%

100%

9%
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 il Z —"E - =F=A=+—HILFE

17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEMB AR @)

Swan Electrical (Pty) Limited Republic of South Africa, Trading and distribution of electronic
limited liability company components, electrical components
and equipment in South Africa
BIERAE - BRAT REFETE TS
BRI REREEENH

Videocom Technology (HK] Hong Kong, Trading of cosmetic products in
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
It (B8 ARAT B8 ARAT REBETIERER
Note:
(i) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December in

accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not coterminous with
the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the Group were prepared
based on the financial statements of the subsidiary for the twelve months ended
31st March 2023 and 2022.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the results or assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time
during the year ended 31st March 2023 (2022: Nil).

Ordinary ZAR 100 55% 55%
LRR0EEER

Ordinary HK$2 100% 100%
LERIBT

(i) REBEMETRTE  ZWBAR 2 RE
BEH#ERAT-ZA=1+—0 BXEEYT
T—3 o AEBMZ A MBEHRETIBEZ
WBARBE-_T_—Fr_T__F=
A=Z+—BIE+ @A ZHEREESR -

ERINHESAREARENRELE
Eﬁi%%ﬁ%ﬂ’]$$@ﬁﬂ§ ANSTES-&=
R A-HHEHEMHEARMFS
@%ﬁiﬁfﬂmiﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

EMBRRAREE =%=A

=t- EIJJ:EF“W?:HH#FW%HEHE
BITZEREEN R —F &) -

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 BlZE —E —=F=A=+—HIFE

17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEME AR @)

Material non-controlling interests

As at 31st March 2023, the total non-controlling interests is
approximately HK$49,147,000 (2022: approximately HK$50,890,000),
of which approximately HK$37,731,000 (2022: approximately
HK$39,273,000) is for Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Mobicon-Mantech Group”) in relation to the Group's
business in South Africa. The non-controlling interests in respect of the
other subsidiaries is not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests
Set out below are the summarized financial information for the
subsidiaries, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has a non-controlling
interests that is material to the Group.

Summarized consolidated statement of financial position

ORIk P B A
RZE_=ZF=ZA=+—H ' I
B& 4 2 48 BE 49 849,147,000 % T (=
T — — 4 #950,890,0008 ) - H A&
#3773100F T (Z T ZZF : &
39,273,000/ 7T ) B A E R 3E R
7% 2 Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited & £
B & 2 7] ([ Mobicon-Mantech £ & |) - H
M B AR 2 IEERE R TERX ©

BEBEEAHZRERE B A
BHHE

N 3CE 1) i B A B Mobicon-Mantech 55 [
Z OIS E R E - Mobicon-Mantech 5= [
BEHEHAEEMEBERNZ FFILRE

E_o

A B REE

Current RE
Assets BE
Liabilities aE

92,174 106,496
(44,396) (44,383)

Total current net assets

mEBEEFEA

47,718

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B £ B 5 A B

For the year ended 31st March 2023 HlZE — T —=F=A=+—HIFE

17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued) 17 FEMB AR @)
Material non-controlling interests (continued) ORI IR AR (2
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with BEBAHZREGZHBLGZHE
material non-controlling interests (continued) BERBEE)
Summarized statement of consolidated financial position (continued) AR A B (48 )

Non-current FERE
Assets BE 47,507 34,917
Liabilities afE (11,088) (4,097)
Total non-current net assets ERBEEFER 36,419
Net assets EEFE 84,197

Summarized consolidated statement of profit or loss and other A A PE s R H M D B S R E

comprehensive income

Revenue 7 132,143 143,131

Profit before income tax MR FTISTHAT & T 12,153
Income tax expense FriSiifi (3,810)

Profit for the year F RN A 8,343
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hith2m (%), WA (12,079)

Total comprehensive (expense)/income for FRE2E(FX) WARE

the year (8,736)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income Al T IEERER C 2E
allocated to non-controlling interests (%) A4z (3,407)

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK 159
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17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

17

Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarized consolidated statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities

REXBELECRERE

FEWBAF (=)
TR 2s (8)
AEEAHIZRER BT I
BEHEE ()

BAHSREEHE

20,701 15,387
(3,647) (5,708)

17,054 9,679
(12,774) (11,278)
4,066 789

Cash generated from operations KEEBEEA RS

Overseas income tax paid BAHEINTEEL

Net cash generated from operating activities ~ A& EFEEL 2 IR 455

Net cash used in investing activities REEESBA 2 HEFE

Net cash generated from financing activities ~ Y& /EBIELE 2 IRE/FE

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RE& R ESZEYIZ I,
equivalents ORA) 28

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUzReRkReEEY
the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ERPE) B

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ F#R 7R & RIS ZEY

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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17 FEMBAE (&)

17 Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

Transactions with non-controlling interests

On 30th July 2021, the Group acquired an additional 20% of equity
interests in APower Holdings Limited for a cash consideration of
approximately HK$1,731,000. The carrying amount of non-controlling
interests in APower Holdings Limited on the date of acquisition was
approximately HK$1,780,000. The Group recognized a decrease in non-
controlling interests of approximately HK$1,780,000 and an increase
in equity attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$49,000.

On 11th March 2022, the Group acquired an additional 25% of
equity interests in Swan Electric (Pty) Ltd for a cash consideration
of approximately Rand 7,720,450 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,010,000). The carrying amount of non-controlling interests in
Swan Electric (Pty) Ltd on the date of acquisition was approximately
Rand 5,074,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,636,000). The Group
recognized a decrease in non-controlling interests of approximately
Rand 5,074,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,636,000)
and a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately Rand 2,645,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,374,000).

18 Inventories

LY E R L T rA Y]
R-ZE-_—F+A=+8 A&EEE
SN B8 5% 81 2R S B A BR A R120% A% 4 -
WERELA1,731,00078 7T - AUEE B
H - T B 2 REIREEBR A FIEE
I A 25 2 BRE{E#941,780,00078 7T © A&
5= [ 7 3R FE 128 AR 2 L {1 4911,780,0007%
T WHERAN R RIEAE AEhEEIEE
4949,0007 7T °

R-_ZE-_—F=ZA+—8 ' A&EEHE
G iz B Swan Electric (Pty) Ltd 25% A% 4& -
WL REBELAE772045058 5 (HER L
4,010,000/ 7C) - RUEEBH - PTiEA
2 Swan Electric (Pty) LtdFEF A %5 2 BRTE
B 49 /45,074,0006 5 (48 72 492,636,000
BIT) o ANEBERIEIERESRAE
#95,074,000 38 %5 (8 & 74 492,636,000 75
T0) 0 WHERAN RN B HEE AFE(RRERSR
B #492,645,00078 4 (FHZFHL £91,374,00078
JL) °

18 7%

Electronic components, electrical components
and equipment

Computer products and mobile accessories B o R A
Cosmetic products b

BEFf - ERTH MERS

146,153 164,069
12,320 14,397
1,466 10,411

165,939 188,877

The reversal of impairment of inventories made in prior years arose due
to an increase in the estimated realizable value of certain products as a
result of a change in customer demand.

REFELNFERERD - JTREP
ERE - SETEmNGFRIZRF
{EIBINFAER -

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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19 Trade Receivables 19 FEWE 5 iRk
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for sales of rEE—RETHEFPZEEREEHH
goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of TEHENHTE - HZEHAZ5 2 B
trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented based B IR (ENREEBEREE) KR
on due dates: T

0 to 60 days ZE60H 34,836

61 to 120 days 612120H 2,652

121 10 180 days 1212180H 186

181 to 365 days 1812365H 445

38,119
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair R¥REBEIFTER 2 e EERR RE
values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit risk WESERZATE - BERAEERF
with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large number of HERL  WEKESERUEEES
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect PR - AEEWEEEWE F R
of its trade receivables. RETAEARERER -
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure lifetime REERAEBMGREEAEIRT
ECL allowance for all trade receivables. HEMEERIE ARG 2R AR E 5 iR
REEHTEREEEEREE -

Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s BRARKE ZEFRE R A S EmE
exposure to credit risk can be found in Note 3.1(b). SERBHE RSN FES D)
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20

21

Cash and Bank Balances 20 B&MSRIT AR

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS

Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount of AEBE2RERBETEKEEY
approximately HK$1,194,000 (2022: approximately HK$6,179,000) was 1,194,000/ 7C(ZZF = =4 : #96,179,000
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The conversion BIL) AA R ERF AT ERAH
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and LRI o B AMZEUARKETEZ
the remittance of these funds out of Mainland China is subject to the EHRRIINERIEZEESELFER
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the #o, - BIZE S AR BABKAT 2B M RO S NE B A
PRC government. R DIPTARMR ©

Trade Payables 21 A 5 Wk

The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based on the invoice REBRABZ7CEMNE ZEZERRY
date is as follows: T

0 to 60 days TE60H

61 to 120 days 61£2120H
121 to 180 days 12122180H
181 to 365 days 18122365 H
The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 to 90 days. BEEMEERNT0EDAH -
22 Loan From a Shareholder 22 RH AR 2Z2ER
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. EEZIEAEEN e NABEEESRKE

3;%0

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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23 Bank Borrowings

Bank loans RITEXR
Bank overdrafts RITIBEX

Bank loans under supplier finance
arrangements (Note (i))

HEBRELHETZ
SRITE R (PEEG)

AT I B

The carrying amounts of the above borrowings
are repayable

A EEEREEZEEBR

15,414

49,624

Within one year —F A 44,804
Within a period of more than one year but not B8 —F{E BB E
exceeding two years 1,392
Within a period of more than two years but not  FB:@F{E BB R F
exceeding five years 3.428
49,624
Note: PHEE

(i)

Bank loans under supplier finance arrangements

The Group has entered into certain supplier finance arrangements with banks.
Under these arrangements, the banks pay suppliers the amounts owed by
the Group in advance of the original due dates by the suppliers. The Group's
obligations to suppliers are legally extinguished on settlement by the relevant
banks. The Group then settles with the banks between 90 days after settlement
by the banks with interest ranges from 2.24% to 7.49%, which may be extended
beyond the original due dates of respective invoices. The interest rates are
consistent with the Group’s short-term borrowing rates.

Taking into consideration of the nature and substance of the above arrangements,
the Group presents payables to the banks under these arrangements as
“borrowings” in the consolidated statement of financial position. In the
consolidated statement of cash flows, repayments to the banks are included
within financing cash flows based on the nature of the arrangements, and
payments to the suppliers by the banks are disclosed as non-cash transactions.

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2022/2023
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23 Bank Borrowings (continued)
Bank borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

24

Hong Kong dollar T
Euro (¢S
Singapore dollar RTINS TT
South African Rand BEL LS

23 RiTEEE)
SRITE A TS & s HE -

39,413
3,704
591
5916

49,624

The effective interest rates of the bank borrowings at the reporting date
range from approximately 2.82% to 11.25% (2022: 2.24% to 7.0%).

The Group’s certain banking facilities are secured by the leasehold
properties and freehold lands and buildings (Note 14), investment
properties (Note 15) of the Group and a personal guarantee given by a
non-controlling interest of certain subsidiaries.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Analysis of deferred tax liabilities as follows:

EERARE

Deferred tax liabilities

PG RE - RITEEZBEMEN T
492 82% E11.25% ( =B = —4F : 224%%
7.0%) °

AEBETHRITHRENUAEEZHE
PFEMEE T REF(FIFE14) - 18E
W (FizE15) R E THB A RMIERE
A s R A MO (B A JEIRIEHEHR o

24 EAEHIE £ 1
ERFBBERESTT

Deferred tax liabilities are expected to be recoverable and settled after
one year.

FEREFERIA B BN —F R D A

=
/B °

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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24 Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued) 24 BERIEAR (2)
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year were as REMIBRGERFAZEBAT
follows:

As at 1st April 2021 NZE-_—FMA—H 1,452 194 1,646
Exchange differences bE X =5 38 6 44
Charged to consolidated BirABmR NG

statement of profit or loss

As at 31st March 2022 and RZBE-_ZF=H=+—H

1st April 2022 R-—FE-__FWMA—H
Exchange differences B R
(Credited)/charged to consolidated (5t A)4F&EBHE,
statement of profit or loss BirABmENRk
As at 31st March 2023 R-BE-=%=H=+-H
25 Share Capital 25 AR

Authorized: VERE ¢
2,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each  2,000,000,0004% & J% [E11&0.10
B2 BB 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each  200,000,000% & A% EI{E0.10
BTz @K 20,000
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 26 %iH & & FEM

Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from BRETSHANRF B E XK EE 2R
operations: FEE 2 HIRR

Profit before income tax B P15 5 Al A

Adjustments for: ANIER 2 8% -
— Amortization of intangible assets — BB 53
— Depreciation of property, plant and —WE - BEMREITE

equipment 1,868
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —RREERE 7,467
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary —HE—FHNBARIME

Weas (12)

— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant —HNEWME BEREKEZ

and equipment e, (Was) 6 (24)
— Interest income — FEWA (153) (254)
— Interest expense — B 4,327 2,642
— (Reversal)/provision for impairment of slow- ~ — ¥ $51F SJ{E (Bml),~

moving inventories B (388) 2,230
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables — FEUSE 5 B8R TR E B 1 674 256
— Reversal of provision for impairment of trade  — fEUNE 5 BR FUR (B B &

receivables ol (306) (144)
— Fair value gain on investment properties —REYEAFEREG (400) (58)

Changes in working capital: LEEEH -
— Inventories —-FE 7,922 (3,063)
— Trade receivables — B E FERK 14,837 (293)
— Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — B FUR -« 7a M EAMD
FEURIE (2,043) (2,821)
—Trade payables —ENE SRR (65) (7.711)
— Other payables and accruals — BN RIB R EETE A 7,531 5131
— Contract liabilities —AaRaE (2,180) 2,010
Net cash generated from operations EEREA e FRE 48,285
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26 Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash 26
Flows (continued)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

HAEBHESmBEEMEE
Rl 3 B 2 > £
T ALERETHELZBEY

EHHE  BRASIOPEREEE) - B
ﬁ/EEbFEZEfs%F%HJIEA$E@

FEREMNERADBERMEEZH R

TREZRE -

As at 1st April 2022 RZE-_FMA—H 30,000 9,292 66,234 105,526
Additions of lease liabilities ~ FAE & E1 0 - 8,201 - 8,201
Financing cash flow MEREME 1,000 (8,524) (19,842) (27,366)
Interest expense FEFRX 129 3,598 4,321
Exchange differences b R (744) (366) (1,110)
As at 31st March 2023 R-—B-_=F=H=+—H 8,954 49,624 89,578
As at 1st April 2021 RZE-_—FMA—H 25,000 7,313 66,124 98,437
Additions of lease liabilites ~ THE & &N - 9,168 - 9,168
Financing cash flow MERERE 5,000 (8,000) (1,609) (4,609)
Interest expense MEFRL - 702 1,940 2,642
Exchange differences P =58 - 109 (221) (112)
As at 31st March 2022 R-ZB-Zf=ZA=+-H 30,000 9,292 66,234 105,526
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27 Operating Leasing Arrangements

28

The Group as lessor

As at 31st March 2023 and 2022, the Group have future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable leases with third parties.

Minimum operating lease payments
receivable:

Within 1 year

After 1 year but within 2 years

AR E RIERKERIR

il
— BT

27

BEmELHk
AEE L HAA

MN-E-=FF T - —F=A=+—
B RIBEASEEESE = FET 2 A
HHE  AEERBERERSKERE
FEURRIE o

Operating lease receivables represent rentals receivable by the Group
for its investment properties. Lease periods are two years.

Related Party Transactions

28

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following significant related party transactions during the year:

(a) Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and

related parties are summarized below:

Rental expenses paid to M-Bar
Limited

Sales to PC Supply Limited and its
subsidiaries (“PC Supply Group”)

Purchases from PC Supply Group

Commission income received from
PC Supply Group

Commission expense paid to PC
Supply Group

Management fee paid to PC Supply
Group

<+ M-Bar Limited 2 T8 4%
F
MEEBMPERA
EW%@TUﬁ*i
E)iHE
%ﬁ%@ilfﬁ
BEEEHEEEREZ
A
EXMEEREEZ
BemRx
BEXNEESHEER
g

(i), (v)

RETHERIGIREASBEREREY
FEWcHe - HEIRHME -

BN L2325
USRS RR D FHREE S -
REENER ZRTU T EABEAL
%5

(a) ANEEEBEBALETZIEAR
SEBRAmT

(ii)
(ii)

(iii)
(iii)
(iv)

ERAEEERAR - —B=-= —“F-=FFK
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28 Related Party Transactions (continued)

(a) (continued)
Notes:

(i) M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung
Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung
Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and
substantial shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with
M-Bar Limited were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting
parties.

(i) PC Supply Limited is owned as to 99.99% and 0.01% by A Plus Computer
Shop Limited (“A Plus”) and Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl respectively. A Plus
is beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung
Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok
Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company.
Sales to and purchases from PC Supply Group were conducted in the
normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

(iii) Commission income/expense received from PC Supply Group was
conducted in the normal course of business at terms as agreed between
the contracting parties.

(iv) Management fee paid to PC Supply Group was conducted in the normal
course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

(v) The lease agreements entered into between M-Bar Limited and Mobicon
Holdings Limited constitute exempted continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b) Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31st March 2023
were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of approximately
HK$464,000 (2022: approximately HK$464,000).

(¢) Included in other payables of the Group were amounts due to
minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of approximately
HK$7,899,000 (2022: approximately HK$8,099,000).

The amount of approximately HK$5,230,000 are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The remaining amount
of approximately HK$2,669,000 are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable after one year.
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28 BN LA G %)

(a)

(b)

()]

(&)
B

(i) M-Bar Limited %  Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited 2 2 & Ft /&
RAE ZARBHARBEEHRTE
BB R =18 (30%) - BEEL L
(30%) ~ Hk 22 55 A= (20%) Fo 15 BB 5
H(20%) B A o E2M-Bar Limiteds]
N2 HEBBE RTINS T MELZ

EARRTSL ©

i) EBERERAADAHEBSEME
BRAR(HEBENE]) Mi5EE
ZEHEE99.99% X 0.01%#Em o B
BEISERARNRIESHREERAE ML
R ZE1E1(30%) ~ 5 EUE 2 L(30%)
LT 2 5 A (20%) K2 15 B BR 5t A2 (20%)
BRBAE  HEBPEEETZH
ERREXFHIR—BEBBRESR
R K e 2 AGFEST -

(i) BETHAEHBRMSKAFH
XN —REBRRPRATOE
195 5E 2 1R RRUKER

vy EXNEEREEZEREN—
REBBEFRETOZTHELF
AT o

(v) M-Bar Limited 2 SR A £ E B R A 7
I 2 FAE B LR RIS 14A
EFMRTE 2 EREHERERS -

R-E-=ZF#=ZA=+—H8" ' &
SEEMERREEEE XN
M-Bar Limited 2 T8 & 1% < #9464,000
BT (ZZEZZF 4946400058
JT) °

A5 B H b FE S TR IE B IE R A
ETHBARLHEBRERELY
78990008 T( T = —F : 4
8,099,000/ 7T) °

% % FXTE #95,230,0005% 7T A E K
- RERIRENREE - ShEEL
2,669,000 T AEEIF - RERRK
—FI&lEE -
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28 Related Party Transactions (continued) 28 BBALRG 2
(d) Key management compensation (d) FEEPABHMH

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e FEREMEY

in kind =l
Employer's contributions to defined & B mEEHE G 2R
contribution scheme HR
Further details of directars’ emoluments are included in Note 13 BEEH 2 E—FHFBHNRERE
to the consolidated financial statements. B RRMIFEIS ©
29 Capital Commitments 29 EARKNE

— contracted but not provided for (Note) — ERTAV AR (P 5T)
Note: This committed expenditure relates to buildings to be constructed on the land T« UbRGER S B R PTRE R IE i E B 2
purchased in South Africa. EEYAR -
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30 Disposal of a Subsidiary 30 B —HIRHE A
On 31st August 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase W_ZE-—FNA=+—8 &EBEFT

VEEWHE A—2BUE=NHE
EEIRTHARAFT0%MAE - REMK
BAR7040008 7T - HEFHEEKR -F
N A=t+—HREK -

agreement to dispose 70% equity interests in Milliard Devices Limited
to an independent third party at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$704,000. The disposal was completed on 31st August 2021.

BRAEHEEEFE M ERHEWEN

Details of the net assets disposed and the gain on disposal are as

follow:

FIIT

Property, plant and equipment M - BB NEE 9
Inventories "E 407
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR X 284
Other receivables and deposits HithpW s e 125
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHES 558
Trade payables ERE SRR (267)
Other payables and accruals Hin e RIB R ETER (65)
Contract liabilities BHBE (46)
Net assets disposed EHEEETE 1,005
Consideration received EEAE 704
Less: Net assets disposed B ERNEEEFE 1,005
Non-controlling interests at disposal date RS BH 2 JEIE i (313)
692
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEB ARz W 12
Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHWBARMEREeRASE
Cash consideration received EYERERE 704
Cash and bank balance disposed EHE RS MIRTTHER (558)
146
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31

Statement of Financial Position of the 31 A2 w] B %R ¥ % KA 2 v
Company and Movement of Reserves of the

Company
As at 31st March 2023

(a)

Statement of financial position of the Company

2 523

BREERC=HF=HA=1—H

(a) FREZRFMRIE

100,640

100,640

153

153

100,793

Non-current asset kREBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIEE
Current assets REEE

Amount due from a subsidiary JEU —FEI BB R B 58
Cash and bank balances R& MIRTTR S

Total assets EEHAE

Current liabilities REEE

Other payables and accruals
Amount due from a subsidiary

H At FEA 08 M FEFT B
& Y — FRIFHY /B8 2 B RIR

22
236

258

(105)

100,535

100,535

20,000
80,535

Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) EESE

Total assets less current liabilities EELABERTHAERE

Net assets EEFE

Capital and reserves attributable to 72 Bl IEH AFE(L
the equity holders of the Company BRA R k5

Share capital &N

Reserves e

Total equity DB

100,535

The statement of financial position of the Company were
approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on

28th June 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE

Chairman
EY 3

ARBZHBRRRKENR -F
“=FRATN\REESRSH
ERIRETE > WA THESK

REFERE -

YEUNG MAN Y1, BERYL
BEE

100,640

100,640

1,766
153

1,919

102,559

22

22

1,897

102,537

102,537

20,000
82,537

102,537

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

HIE AR TIEARE,

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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31 Statement of Financial Position of the 31 A2 %] BRI ERLAKA A

Company and Movement of Reserves of the Z b st ) ()

Company (continued)

As at 31st March 2023 (continued) REBZ=ZA=ZA=1—HE)
(b)) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AREZHFEEE

Balance at 1st April 2021 RZZZ—FWA—H

BB 16,706 67,097 387 84,190
Profit for the year FRm=HM - - 347 347
Dividends [i% 8 - - (2,000) (2,000)

Balance at 31stMarch 2022 M- ZT -4
—RA=1t—8z#&% 16,706 67,097 (1,266) 82,537

Balance at 1st April 2022 i 1Y Rl =]

2 FEER (1,266) 82,537
Loss for the year FABE (2) (2)
Dividends i85 (2,000) (2,000)

Balance at 31st March 2023 A—Z—=#=H

=t—Hz&H% 16,706 67,097 (3,268) 80,535
Representing; R
2023 final dividend —T=FREKRE 1,000
Others Hh (4.268)
(3,268)

Note:  Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value MIET : A RMIBARR A EITEBR 2
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value HEERE-_ZTT-—FMNA+NA
of subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the T2 ERAIBRG BB AR
reorganization which took place on 18th April 2001. ZEEFEIERE -
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Financial Summary

S B R 2L

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

AEEBERAMBRFEZERMERERE

EEBEMEFHIMT

Revenue Wiz 410421
Profit before income tax BRATS AT R A 9,230
Income tax expense FrisHifx (3,961)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF(EE) 5,269
Attributable to: TH AR :
Equity holders of the Company ~ R RIEZIZFH A (378)
Non-controlling interests RS 5,647
5,269

501,269 456,369 461,245 479,39
27,436 20,539 1,565 1,758
(6.296) (1,950 (4.814) (4,672)
21,140 18,589 (3.249) (2.914)
13,211 12,151 (5,729) (7,690)
7,929 6,438 2,480 4776
21,140 18,589 (3,249) (2.914)

BRAKEERLR - == “B-=FFH
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Assets and Liabilities EERkAM

Property, plant and equipment 1% - = R R & 51,811 39316 29,107 21314 30,160
Right-of-use assets FRREE 8,468 8,741 6,937 11,755 -
Intangible assets BREE 137 138 92 63 -
Investment properties REME 5,196 4,685 4,623 4518 4,805
Goodwill HE - - - 7 -
Prepayments and deposits BN ZE RS 1,945 2,016 2,688 3,360 4,032
Current assets RBEE 252,536 301,029 291,032 259,174 260,075
Total assets EEAERBAER 320,093 355,925 334,479 306,355 299,072
Current liabilities TEEEFE (134,883) (162,695) (156,833) (158,383) (139,956)
Net current assets EEAER 117,653 138,334 134,199 100,791 120,119

Total assets less current  FEEE

liabilities 185,210 193,230 177,646 147,972 159,116
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (12,536) (5,061) (4,771) (6,488) (28)
Net assets BEFE 172,674 188,169 172,875 141,484 159,088

Capital and reserves RATEREEARERL
attributable to the equity ~ RAR S

holders of the Company
Share capital R 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves & 103,527 117,279 105,155 86,284 104,450
123,527 137,279 125,155 106,284 124,450
Non-controlling interests ez fR#E2S 49,147 50,890 47,720 35,200 34,638
Total equity R 172,674 188,169 172,875 141,484 159,088
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